
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
June 15, 2015 

Executive Session – 6:15 P.M. 
Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M. 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
Roll Call of Members 
 
Acknowledgement of Meeting Notice 
 
Executive Session:  Acquisition of Property [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C)], and Labor 
Negotiations [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D)]   
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Adjustments to Agenda 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
(a) Approval of minutes of June 1, 2015 
(b) Approval of minutes of May 28, 2015 
(c) Approval of the Brunswick Downtown Association’s use of the Mall and sale of alcohol for 

an Emergency Services Tribute Community Barbeque 
 
Public Comments 
 
Correspondence 
 
Committee Reports 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
(a) Financial Update  
(b) Update regarding NNEPRA Layover Facility and Auxiliary Power Unit (APU) 
(c) Update on the CGI Communications project 
(d) Reminder of school facilities meeting on June 18 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
64. The Town Council will hear public comments on the following Special Amusement 

license applications, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 
 

Special Amusement 
165 Park Row, Inc 
D/B/A: Brunswick Inn   Eileen Horner 
165 Park Row 
 



2 
 

Raven’s Roost 
D/B/A: Raven’s Roost   Raven Wing/Ronald Wing Sr. & III 
103 Pleasant Street 
 
Maine & Noble LLC 
D/B/A: Brunswick Hotel and Tavern  J. Hilary Rockett 
4 Noble Street 
 
MCM Corp 
D/B/A: Hacienda Pancho Villa Mexican Fernando Saldana 
Restaurant 
164 Pleasant Street 

PUBLIC HEARING/ACTION 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
65. The Town Council will hear a report on the Solarize Brunswick project progress, and will 

determine if any future action is required.  (Chair Brayman and Councilor Walker) 
DISCUSSION 

 
66. The Town Council will consider setting a Public Hearing on July 6, 2015, to review a 

Community Development Block Grant MicroEnterprise Assistance Program contract 
amendment, which is assisting two Brunswick businesses, Anew Studio and Fair Winds, 
Inc., with grant funds to undertake building/leasehold improvements and technical system 
enhancements, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 

ACTION 
 
67. The Town Council will consider adopting “A Resolution Authorizing a Transfer of the 

Balance of Funds From the Town’s Industrial Park Fund and the Appropriation and 
Expenditure of Those Funds for the Purpose of Acquiring Real Estate and Razing 
Building(s) Located at the Northwest Corner of Pleasant and Mill Street,” and will take 
any appropriate action.  (Manager) 

ACTION 
 
68. The Town Council will consider amending the Council Rules regarding how Council 

action items will be handled at Council meetings, and will determine if any future action 
is needed.  (Chair Brayman) 

ACTION 
 
69. The Town Chair will appoint Council members to the Finance Committee, and will take 

any appropriate action. (Chair Brayman) 
ACTION 

 
70. The Town Council will consider allowing the Town to apply for a DEP grant for Stream 

Crossing Public Infrastructure Improvement Projects in an amount up to $95,000, to be 
used to replace the River Road culvert, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager)  

ACTION 
 



3 
 

Executive Session: Consultations with legal counsel regarding MRRA and the Kestrel Tax 
Case [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E)]  
 

INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION 
SHOULD CONTACT THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521)



4 
 

Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda  

June 15, 2015 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
Executive Session:  Acquisition of Property [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C)], and Labor 
Negotiations [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D)]   
 
Motion to go into executive session to discuss Acquisition of Property [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C)] 
and Labor Negotiations [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D)].   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a) Approval of minutes of June 1, 2015:  A copy of the minutes is included in the packet. 
b) Approval of minutes of May 28, 2015:  A copy of the minutes is included in the packet. 
c) Approval of the Brunswick Downtown Association’s use of the Mall and sale of alcohol for 

an Emergency Services Tribute Community Barbeque:  This item allows the BDA to hold 
this event on the Mall on Saturday, June 27th from noon to 4 p.m. at no charge, and to allow 
for the sale of alcohol.  If the Council wishes to discuss the issues of either waiving the fee or 
the sale of alcohol you will want to take this item off the consent agenda.  The BDA did hold 
the Taste of Brunswick for several years where alcohol was sold and there were no issues. 

 
The Council has the option to remove any item from the Consent Agenda to be considered 
separately. 
 

Suggested Motion:  
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
This is the opportunity for Councilors to share any correspondence they may have. 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE UPDATES 
 
Councilors with information on the Committees they are involved with will share information 
with the Council and public.   
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
(a) Financial Update:  Mr. Eldridge will update the Council on the Town’s financial picture as 

the fiscal year comes to an end.  Copies of financial reports will be posted online, but are not 
included in your packet.  There will be a year-end meeting on June 29th at 6:00 p.m. 

 
(b) Update regarding NNEPRA Layover Facility and Auxiliary Power Unit (APU):  This item is 

to provide an update on this project.  Copies of a memo from Manager Eldridge, draft 
stormwater license for the facility, and Transportation Committee letter to NNEPRA 
regarding the installation of the APU will be included in your packet. 

  



5 
 

(c) Update on the CGI Communications project:  This item is to provide the Council and the 
public with an update on this project, which gained Council support early this year.  The 
company has been reaching out to businesses offering to develop videos that highlight their 
companies. CGI is now entering the next step of creating the videos and will be in the 
community on July 6th and July 7th.  A copy of a memo from Linda Smith is included in your 
packet. 

 
(d) Reminder of school facilities meeting: This to remind the Councilors of the upcoming school 

facilities meeting on Thursday, June 18th at 6:30 p.m. at the Council Chambers. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
64. This item is the required public hearing on renewal Special Amusement license 

applications.  The requested activities are as follows:   
 Brunswick Inn – small bands for parties and weddings  
 Raven’s Roost – bands and DJs 
 Brunswick Hotel and Tavern – live entertainment, music, DJs and dancing 
 Hacienda Pancho Villa Mexican Restaurant – live music and DJs 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to approve Special Amusement license applications for Brunswick Inn, 165 Park 
Row; Raven’s Roost, 103 Pleasant Street; Brunswick Hotel and Tavern, 4 Noble Street; 
and Hacienda Pancho Villa Mexican Restaurant, 164 Pleasant Street. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
65. This item, sponsored by Chair Brayman and Councilor Walker, is an opportunity for the 

Recycling Committee to present the Solarize Brunswick idea to the Council.  There will 
be no vote at this meeting; instead, information on how the program would work and 
response to Council questions will take place.  At your July 20th meeting, there will be a 
request for Council approval to move forward with this program.  Copies of materials 
prepared by the Committee are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion:  This is no motion, with the item coming back to the Council on July 
20th for action. 

 
66. This item is for the Council to consider setting a public hearing for July 6, 2015 for the 

grant.  The Maine Department of Economic and Community Development (DECD) 
provides for individual municipalities to apply for a MicroEnterprise Assistance Program 
grant of up to $150,000 maximum funding in any program year.  In March 2015, DECD 
approved a contract awarding the Town of Brunswick $50,000 on behalf of its business 
applicant, Blue Dog Day Care.  The Town can apply on behalf of other Brunswick 
microbusinesses for up to an additional $100,000 as a contract amendment to this original 
contract award.  Two businesses, Fair Winds, Inc. and Anew Studio, have been working 
with DECD and the Town to apply for MicroEnterprise Assistance Program funds. 
DECD recommends that the Town hold one Public Hearing and submit one contract 
amendment request for both applicants.  A copy of a memo from Linda Smith is included 
in your packet. 



6 
 

 
Suggested motion  
Motion to set a public hearing for July 6, 2015, to review a Community Development 
Block Grant MicroEnterprise Assistance Program contract amendment, which is to assist 
two Brunswick businesses, Anew Studio and Fair Winds, Inc., with grant funds to 
undertake building/leasehold improvements and technical system enhancements. 

 
67. This item is for the Council to consider adopting “A Resolution Authorizing a Transfer of 

the Balance of Funds From the Town’s Industrial Park Fund and the Appropriation and 
Expenditure of Those Funds for the Purpose of Acquiring Real Estate and Razing 
Building(s) Located at the Northwest Corner of Pleasant and Mill Street.” The Town’s 
interest in this property is primarily to provide a right of way for potential future traffic 
improvements to this intersection that have long ago been identified as needing 
improvements.  Additional information on this is outlined in Manager Eldridge’s memo.  
Copies of the memo and resolution are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adopt “A Resolution Authorizing a Transfer of the Balance of Funds From the 
Town’s Industrial Park Fund and the Appropriation and Expenditure of Those Funds for 
the Purpose of Acquiring Real Estate and Razing Building(s) Located at the Northwest 
Corner of Pleasant and Mill Street.” 

 
68. This item, sponsored by Chair Brayman, was discussed at your last meeting and comes 

back now for your consideration.  It is to amend the Council Rules regarding how 
Council action items will be handled at Council meetings.  A copy of the drafted changes 
is included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to amend the Council Rules regarding how Council action items will be handled 
at Council meetings. 

 
69. This item is for the Council Chair to appoint Council members to the Finance Committee.  

Unlike other Council committees, this Committee has terms that expire at the end of June 
so they can run concurrent with the fiscal year.  

  
Suggested motion: 

 There is no motion as the appointments are made by the Council Chair. 
 
70. This item is for the Council to consider allowing the Town to apply for a DEP grant for 

Stream Crossing Public Infrastructure Improvement Projects in an amount up to $95,000. 
Staff would like to apply for funding under this DEP grant for replacement of the River 
Road culvert at the foot of Rocky Hill damaged by the flood event on August 14, 2014. 
We have currently prepared a concept design and have applied to the US Army Corps of 
Engineers for a permit to allow the replacement of this culvert. We are awaiting final 
review and approval of the application.  Copies of a memo from John Foster, along with 
the grant guidelines, are included in your packet. 
 
 



7 
 

Suggested motion: 
Motion to allow the Town to apply for a DEP grant for Stream Crossing Public 
Infrastructure Improvement Projects in an amount up to $95,000 to be used to replace the 
River Road culvert. 

 
Executive Session: Consultations with legal counsel regarding MRRA and the Kestrel Tax 
Case [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E)]  
 

Suggested motion: 
Motion to go into executive session to discuss Consultations with legal counsel regarding 
MRRA and the Kestrel Tax Case [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E)]. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
June 1, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers 

Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

 
Councilors Present: W. David Watson, Suzan Wilson, John M. Perreault, Daniel E. Harris, 

Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, Katherine E. Wilson, and John 
Richardson Jr. 

 
Councilors Absent: Councilor Stephen S. Walker 
 
Town Staff Present: John S. Eldridge, III, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant 

to the Town Manager; Steve Langsdorf, Town Attorney; Linda Smith, 
Business Development Manager; Jessica Factor, Human Resources 
Manager; Terry Goan, Police Officer; and TV video crew 

 
Chair Brayman called the meeting to order, asked the Clerk for roll call, acknowledged that the 
meeting was properly noticed, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Adjustments to Agenda – None  
 
CONSENT AGENDA (This item was discussed at 7:02 p.m.) 
a) Approval of the Minutes of April 30, 2015 
b) Approval of the Minutes of May 14, 2015 
c) Approval of the Minutes of May 18, 2015 
d) Adoption of policies required as part of the Community Development Block (CDBG) 

Grant Phase II Project Development 
e) Approval of a request from the Brunswick Downtown Association to hold their annual 

Outdoor Arts Festival on August 15, 2015, and to waive the $500 fee  
f) Acceptance of sculpture donated by Brunswick Public Art 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to approve Items A-E on the 
Consent Agenda. The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
Susan Weems, Brunswick Public Art, spoke regarding Item f. 
 
Manager Eldridge read the Proclamation and responded to questions from Councilor Watson and 
Councilor K. Wilson. 
 
Councilor Harris spoke regarding this item. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
June 1, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 
 

Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to approve Item CA(f) on the 
Consent Agenda, the donation of a sculpture by Brunswick Public Art.  The motion carried 
with seven (7) yeas.  Chair Brayman abstained since she sits on the Board of Brunswick 
Public Art. 
 
Public Comments (This item was discussed at 7:10 p.m.) 
 
Debora King, 10 Cushnoc Lane and BDA, spoke regarding the Brunswick Downtown 
Association’s Emergency Personnel barbeque and thanked the Council for their funding of BDA 
in the upcoming year. 
 
Correspondence (This item was discussed at 7:13 p.m.) 
 
None 
 
Committee Reports (This item was discussed at 7:14 p.m.) 
 
Reports were given regarding the Finance Committee and creating a task force in the future to 
determine a policy and procedure to fund social service agencies. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT:  
a) Recognition of donation of granite bench in memory of Jacquelin A. Toth (This item was 

discussed at 7:15 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
(A copy of the letter from Mr. Farrell, thanking the family, will be attached to the official 
minutes.) 
 
b) Election reminder for June 9th School Budget Validation Referendum (This item was 

discussed at 7:15 p.m.) 
 
Fran Smith, Town Clerk, provided this report. 
 
c) Update regarding NNEPRA action on an auxiliary power unit (This item was discussed 

at 7:16 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge provided this update.  He responded to questions from Councilor Perreault, 
Councilor Millett, Councilor Richardson, and Councilor K. Wilson.  
 
d) CDBG Program Overview (This item was discussed at 7:21 p.m.) 

Linda Smith, Business Development Manager, spoke regarding this item.  She responded to 
questions from Chair Brayman, Councilor Harris, and Councilor Perreault.  
 



Town Council Minutes 
June 1, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 
 

Manager Eldridge spoke also regarding this item. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
63. The Town Council will consider amending the Council Rules regarding how Council 

action items will be handled at Council meetings, and will determine if any future 
action is needed.  (Chair Brayman) (This item was discussed at 7:36 p.m.) 

 
Chair Brayman introduced this item.   
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson and Councilor Millett asked questions, to which Chair Brayman and 
Manager Eldridge responded. 
 
Councilor Harris, Councilor Richardson, Councilor S. Wilson, Councilor Watson, and Councilor 
Millett spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair Brayman asked for public input. 
 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street, spoke regarding this item. 
 
Charles Wallace, Mere Point Road, spoke regarding this item. 
 
64. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and 

Committees, and will take any appropriate action.  (Appointments Committee) (This 
item was discussed at 8:00 p.m.) 

 
Councilor Millett made the following nominations:  
 
Cable TV Committee 
 David Carpenter – reappointment for a term to expire on 09/06/2018 
Davis Fund Committee 
 Daniel Doiron – reappointment for a term to expire on 06/30/2018 
Housing Authority 
 Howard Nannen – appointment for a term to expire on 06/03/2020 
Marine Resource Committee 

Timothy Bennett – appointment as alternate non-license holder member for a term to 
expire on 05/01/2018 

Personnel Board 
 Marybeth Latti – reappointment as alternate for a term to expire on 01/12/2018  
Recreation Commission 
 Daniel Ankeles – reappointment for a term to expire on 07/01/2018 
Trust Fund Advisory 
 David Shaughnessy – appointment for a term to expire on 05/10/2017  



Town Council Minutes 
June 1, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 
 

 
Councilor Harris moved approval of the nominations;no second is required. 
 
Councilor Perreault, Councilor S. Wilson, Councilor Watson, Councilor Millett, and Chair 
Brayman spoke regarding the process. 
 
It was the consensus of the Council to remove Mr. Carpenter from this list of nominees until a 
time nearer the expiration of his term in September. 
 
Councilor Harris moved to accept the nominations as presented, with the exception of Mr. 
Carpenter’s nomination for the Cable TV Committee;no second was required.  The 
amended slate of nominations was supported by eight (8) Councilors. 
 
Executive Session:  Acquisition of Property [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C)] 
 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to go into Executive Session to discuss 
Acquisition of Property per 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C).  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
Councilor Watson moved,  Councilor S. Wilson seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:43 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
Frances M. Smith 
Town Clerk 
June 2, 2015 
 

June 15, 2015 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Special Meeting Minutes 
May 28, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers 

Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

 
Councilors Present: W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, Suzan Wilson, John M. Perreault, 

Daniel E. Harris, Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, Katherine E. Wilson, 
and John Richardson, Jr. 

 
Councilors Absent: None 
 
Town Staff Present: John S. Eldridge, III, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant to 

the Town Manager; Anna Breinich, Director of Planning and 
Development; Tom Farrell, Director of Parks and Recreation; Julie Henze, 
Finance Director; Jeff Emerson, Deputy Fire Chief; Don Koslosky, Deputy 
Fire Chief; Linda Smith, Business Development Manager; Terry Goan, 
Police Officer; and TV video crew 

 
Chair Brayman called the meeting to order, asked the Clerk for roll call, acknowledged that the 
meeting was properly noticed, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
NEW BUSINESS ITEMS: 
 
Chair Brayman took general public comments on the budget. 
 
Ed Cowan, Sunshine Too owner, spoke about his disappointment with the increase in taxes over 
the years.  He also commented on the lack of cuts made by the School Board. 
 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street, said he will continue working to make the Town more fiscally 
responsible. 
 
57. The Town Council will consider adopting the 2015-2016 School Budget Articles, and 

will take any appropriate action.  (Manager)  (This item was discussed at 7:11 p.m.) 
 
REGION TEN TECHNICAL HIGH SCHOOL AND MERRYMEETING ADULT 
EDUCATION BUDGET ARTICLES 
 
ARTICLE 1.  Region Ten Technical High School Budget.   
 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to approve the Region Ten Technical 
High School budget as approved by the Cooperative Board of Region Ten in an amount not 
to exceed $2,053,751 with Brunswick’s assessment as part of the total appropriation to the 
Brunswick School Department being an amount not to exceed $785,399 for operating 
expenditures and $0 for debt service expenditures. The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
May 28, 2015 
Page 2 
 

  

ARTICLE 2.  Merrymeeting Adult Education Budget.   
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to approve the Merrymeeting Adult 
Education budget in an amount not to exceed $700,439 with Brunswick’s assessment as part 
of the total appropriation to the Brunswick School Department not to exceed $121,399.  The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
K-12 ARTICLES 

 
ARTICLE 3.  Local Contribution Required under EPS to Receive Full State Dollars; and 
State Subsidy.   
 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Walker seconded, as part of the total appropriation to 
the Brunswick School Department:  To appropriate the sum of $26,771,389 toward the total 
cost of funding public education from kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential 
Programs and Services Funding Act; and as part of the $26,771,389 to raise the sum of 
$16,945,308 as the Town’s contribution toward the total cost of funding public education 
from kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding 
Act in accordance with the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15688; and as part of 
the $26,771,389 to accept state subsidy anticipated in the amount of $9,826,081.  The motion 
carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
ARTICLE 4.  Non-State-Funded Debt Service.   
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Walker seconded, as part of the total appropriation to 
the Brunswick School Department:  To appropriate the sum of $199,612 and to raise the 
sum of $199,612 for the annual payments on debt service previously approved by the 
legislative body for non-state-funded school construction projects, non-state-funded 
portions of school construction projects in addition to the funds appropriated as the local 
share of the school administrative unit’s contribution to the total cost of funding public 
education from kindergarten to grade 12.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
Jim Oikle, School Department Business Manager, spoke regarding this item. 
 
ARTICLE 5.  Additional Local Funds.   
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, as part of the total appropriation to 
the Brunswick School Department:  To raise and appropriate the sum of $5,990,346 in 
additional local funds, which exceeds the State’s Essential Programs and Services allocation 
model by $5,405,938.  
 
The School Board recommends $5,990,346 in additional local funds which amount exceeds 
the State’s Essential Programs and Services allocation model by $5,405,938 for the following 
reasons:  The State’s EPS allocation in Transportation, Facilities Maintenance, Special 
Education, Extra-Curricular and Co-Curricular programs and instructional staffing are 
inadequate to fully fund the 2015-16 program approved by the school board in the proposed 
budget. The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
Councilor K. Wilson, Councilor Perreault, and Councilor Watson asked questions, to which Mr. 
Oikle responded.  



Town Council Minutes 
May 28, 2015 
Page 3 
 

  

 
ARTICLE 6.  Other Funds.  
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, as part of the total appropriation to 
the Brunswick School Department:  To accept funds from other sources as estimated below 
and to appropriate the amount of $195,000 
 
Tuition and other charges        102,000 
Miscellaneous           93,000 
                 $   195,000 
The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
ARTICLE 7.  Unexpended Balances.   
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Walker seconded, as part of the total appropriation to 
the Brunswick School Department:  To appropriate $3,067,309 from the existing, or 
estimated, unexpended balances of the Brunswick School Department, and to appropriate 
$119,800 in unused bond proceeds and other funds remaining from the Harriet Beecher 
Stowe construction project.  Total to appropriate $3,187,109.  The motion carried with nine 
(9) yeas. 
 
Mr. Oikle explained this item and responded to a question from Councilor Perreault. 
 
ARTICLE 8.  Kindergarten to Grade 12 total Budget.   
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to authorize the Brunswick School 
Department to expend $36,343,456 for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and ending 
June 30, 2016 from the school administrative unit’s contribution to the total cost of funding 
public education from kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and 
Services Funding Act, non-state-funded school construction projects, additional local funds 
for school purposes under the Maine Revised Statutes title 20-A section 15690, unexpended 
balances, tuition receipts, state subsidy, and other receipts for the support of schools.  The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
ADULT EDUCATION AND FOOD SERVICE 

 
ARTICLE 9.  Adult Education.   
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Walker seconded, as part of the total appropriation to 
the Brunswick School Department:  To raise and appropriate $121,399 for adult education; 
with authorization to expend the herein appropriated $121,399 and any additional, 
incidental, or miscellaneous receipts in the interest and for the well-being of the adult 
education program.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 

 
ARTICLE 10.  Food Service.   
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Walker seconded, as part of the total appropriation to 
the Brunswick School Department:  To raise and appropriate the sum of $61,000 in 
additional local dollars in support of the Brunswick School Nutrition Program, and to 
authorize expenditure of the herein appropriated $61,000 for the stated purpose.  The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
May 28, 2015 
Page 4 
 

  

ARTICLE 11.  Cost Center Allocation.   
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, pursuant to 20-A M.R.S.A., to 
authorize allocation of the school budget, $36,525,855 to the various cost centers as 
recommended by the Brunswick School Board May 27, 2015 as follows: 
 
Cost Center Summary   Amount Recommended by  Amount 
Approved by 
Budget Category                       School Board                Town Council 
 
Regular Instruction    $     15,676,015  $   15,676,015  
Special Education    $       4,927,035  $     4,927,035 
Career and Technical Education  $          785,399  $        785,399 
Other Instruction    $          727,959  $        727,959 
Student and staff support   $       3,486,944  $     3,486,944 
System Administration   $          903,920  $        903,920 
School Administration   $       1,484,215  $     1,484,215 
Transportation and Buses   $       1,892,812  $     1,892,812 
Facilities Maintenance   $       4,569,917  $     4,569,917 
Debt Service and Other Commitments $       1,889,240  $     1,889,240 
Other      $                     0                       $                   0 
Total to June 9 Public Referendum  $     36,343,456  $   36,343,456 

 
Food Service                  $            61,000  $          61,000 
Adult Education    $ 121,399  $        121,399 

 
Summary of Total Expenditures voted                 
By School Board May 27, 2015  $     36,525,855  $   36,525,855 
 
The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
Councilor Watson asked a question, to which Mr. Oikle responded. 
 
Councilor Millett wanted to make a commitment to work with the school department to share 
information and understand costs. 
 
GRANTS, DONATIONS, AND OTHER REVENUES ARTICLE 
 
ARTICLE 12.  Grants, Donations, and other revenues.   
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to authorize the Brunswick School 
Department to make application for grants and other revenues as opportunities may 
become available, to appropriate such revenues to the purpose for which received, and to 
authorize the Brunswick School Department to accept and expend any grant awards, 
donations, or other revenues that may be received.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the adopted articles and cost centers will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 



Town Council Minutes 
May 28, 2015 
Page 5 
 

  

58. The Town Council will consider a warrant for the School Budget Validation 
Referendum to be held on June 9, 2015, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Manager)  (This item was discussed at 7:34 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to approve the Election Warrant 
for the School Budget Validation Referendum to be held on June 9, 2015.   The motion 
carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the Election Warrant will be attached to the official minutes.) 

 
59. The Town Council will consider adopting the “Budget Resolution for the July 1, 2015 

– June 30, 2016 Fiscal Year,” and will take any appropriate action. (Manager)  (This 
item was discussed at 7:36 p.m.) 

 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to adopt the “Budget Resolution for 
the July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2016 Fiscal Year.”   
 
Councilor Millett asked questions, to which Manager Eldridge responded. 
 
AMENDMENT 1 
Councilor Millett moved, Councilor Harris seconded, to amend the motion to remove 
$10,000 for MidCoast Hunger from the proposed budget. 
 
Councilor Harris, Councilor Walker, and Councilor Millett, spoke regarding this item. 
 
AMENDMENT 1 VOTE 
Councilor Millett moved, Councilor Harris seconded, to amend the motion to remove 
$10,000 for MidCoast Hunger from the proposed budget.  The motion failed with three (3) 
yeas.  Councilor Walker, Councilor Watson, Councilor S. Wilson, Councilor Perreault, 
Councilor K. Wilson and Councilor Richardson were opposed. 
 
AMENDMENT 2 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Harris seconded, for the funds for MidCoast Hunger 
prevention to be used only for the Backpack program for school age children. 
 
Ethan Minton, Program Director, spoke regarding this program, and responded to questions 
from Chair Brayman and Councilor Watson. 
 
Councilor Millett asked a question, to which Councilor Perreault responded.  
 
Councilor S. Wilson, Councilor Richardson, Councilor Perreault, and Councilor K. Wilson also 
spoke to this.  
 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
May 28, 2015 
Page 6 
 

  

AMENDMENT 2 (Withdrawn) 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Harris seconded, for the funds for MidCoast Hunger 
prevention to be used only for the Backpack program for school age children. 
 
AMENDMENT 3 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Richardson seconded, for the funds for MidCoast 
Hunger prevention to be used to feed the children from Brunswick. 
 
Chair Brayman and Councilor K. Wilson spoke regarding this item. 
 
VOTE AMENDMENT 3 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Richardson seconded, for the funds for MidCoast 
Hunger prevention to be used to feed the children from Brunswick. 
The motion failed with two (2) yeas.  Councilor Watson, Councilor Walker, Councilor S. 
Wilson, Chair Brayman, Councilor Harris, Councilor K. Wilson, and Councilor Millett 
were opposed.  
 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to adopt the “Budget Resolution for 
the July 1, 2015 – June 30, 2016 Fiscal Year.”  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the adopted resolution will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
60. The Town Council will consider adopting the “Resolution for the Capital 

Improvements Program for the Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2016 - 2020,” and will 
take any appropriate action.  (Manager)  (This item was discussed at 8:04 p.m.) 

 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to adopt the “Resolution for the 
Capital Improvements Program For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2016 – 2020.”  The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the adopted resolution will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
61. The Town Council will consider adopting the “Supplemental Budget Resolution 

Appropriating $50,000 from the Unassigned Balance of the General Fund to Fund 
the Third and Final Payment for the 2013-14 Town-wide Telephone System,” and 
will take any appropriate action. (Manager)  (This item was discussed at 8:06 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item, and responded to questions from Councilor 
Perreault. 
 
Councilor Walker moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to adopt the “Supplemental 
Budget Resolution Appropriating $50,000 from the Unassigned Balance of the General 
Fund to Fund the Third and Final Payment for the 2013-14 Town-wide Telephone System.”  
The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the adopted resolution will be attached to the official minutes.) 



Town Council Minutes 
May 28, 2015 
Page 7 
 

  

 
62. The Town Council will consider any other matters related to the adoption of the 

2015-2016 Budget and will take any appropriate action. (Manager)  (This item was 
discussed at 8:08 p.m.)  

 
There were no other matters to be addressed. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The motion 
carried with nine (9) yeas, 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
Frances M. Smith 
Town Clerk 
June 2, 2015 
 

June 15, 2015 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 





 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
IN COUNCIL PACKETS 
BUT ON LINE 
 
 



 
 
 

05/30/2015 10:51    |Town of Brunswick |P      1
jhenze              |MAY 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 11
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

10 Taxes                              
_________________________________________

 
111190 41101  Property Taxes   36,189,094  36,189,094  36,469,033.08       1,089.59                   -279,939.08  100.8%*
111190 41102  Prev Years Supplement            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
111190 41103  Deferred Property Tax     -200,000    -200,000            .00            .00                   -200,000.00     .0% 
111190 41104  Tax Abatements      -75,000     -75,000     -20,450.93        -816.52                    -54,549.07   27.3% 
111190 41105  Interest on Taxes       75,000      75,000      54,032.07       4,591.35                     20,967.93   72.0%*
111190 41106  Tax Lien Costs Revenu       12,000      12,000      14,610.69            .00                     -2,610.69  121.8%*
111190 41107  Tax Lien Interest Rev       12,000      12,000      17,999.85            .00                     -5,999.85  150.0%*
111190 41109  Payment in Lieu of Ta      150,000     150,000     104,400.30         500.00                     45,599.70   69.6%*
111190 41197  BETE reimbursement      157,895     157,895     413,833.00         198.00                   -255,938.00  262.1%*
111190 41198  Homestead exemption r      427,247     427,247     321,993.00            .00                    105,254.00   75.4%*
111190 41199  Miscellaneous tax adj        3,343       3,343            .00            .00                      3,343.00     .0%*
111191 41110  Excise Tax - Auto    2,825,000   2,825,000   2,729,821.81     291,100.66                     95,178.19   96.6%*
111191 41111  Excise Tax Boat/ATV/S       25,000      25,000      20,663.35       6,578.80                      4,336.65   82.7%*
111191 41112  Excise Tax - Airplane        4,000       4,000       4,059.94            .00                        -59.94  101.5%*

 
TOTAL Taxes                        39,605,579  39,605,579  40,129,996.16     303,241.88                   -524,417.16  101.3%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   39,605,579  39,605,579  40,129,996.16     303,241.88                   -524,417.16

 
20 Licenses & Fees                    
_________________________________________

 
121111 42207  Passport Fees        8,000       8,000      12,650.00       1,050.00                     -4,650.00  158.1%*
121111 42208  Postage Fees            0           0          39.98            .00                        -39.98  100.0%*
121111 42209  Passport Picture Reve        2,000       2,000       2,433.00         453.00                       -433.00  121.7%*
121411 42100  Building Permits      132,500     132,500     145,756.85      12,749.85                    -13,256.85  110.0%*
121411 42101  Electrical Permits       31,000      31,000      28,865.09       1,455.36                      2,134.91   93.1%*
121411 42102  Plumbing Permits       20,500      20,500      18,190.00       1,302.50                      2,310.00   88.7%*
121411 42103  Zoning Board Fees            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42104  CEO Reinspections            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42105  Mobile Home Permits            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42106  Institutional Permits            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42107  Alts/Adds Permits            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42108  Comm/Indus Permits            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42109  Multiple Dwellings            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121411 42110  Accessory Structures            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121611 42200  Hunting & Fishing Lic        1,300       1,300         984.25         168.50                        315.75   75.7%*
121611 42201  Dog License Fee        2,502       2,502       2,668.00          45.00                       -166.00  106.6%*
121611 42202  Vital Statistics       45,000      45,000      49,174.60       4,471.00                     -4,174.60  109.3%*
121611 42203  General Licenses       24,250      24,250      17,997.50       2,452.50                      6,252.50   74.2%*

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=AgVl68Oc8CsgU1Uj%2BfOJR67sQyM7w0MBmNdrT0OgSS1PDd6AZjraAIl4z0tOQJNj&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=x22wMl/sxLKddrtslEJllOdIXTsxVNcubhCHmd2uruhY6hj/vvtGwcq4ht4/QR%2B2&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=KA0N4oiZjCbAV1j5PvsjbSSQgTTZAtDEMfqFEhQmyy1haD4%2Bxv/Gp7SaEJXDoBEK&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=HRZEjx1asUngR10KNrYLa6sjg3ZBIWg7fywu5VsKkGxzIshanPGCVX9I5QMsjCZk&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pDVnomLfJs7a3HEVIzFDwsRBsEyf5LW3BSGOWIwXuXvO6Vfn9UcMqkyZwhGSCgPv&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pUBj2sasgmFN%2Bd1bptdkb11miHA/M5IFH/qeSRiSWsvkethKPg4KC3wW2u%2B6W2c5&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=WwBxo318ARn5AkMfRVBOtJnKuqajAzLCsdgmtPLc82INv7QJYSpMYDmlVO2nj89d&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=jHAnpIIisgMSyXWDbQS4M7WN2VAcn8lUJ1qDMRs92Y1GNpbLb0ybdvOOzGBhf2bn&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=nc8mnIwkDfPqIHQCJDwKii72/RCUcb96roQ%2BzuRsMRkAZmwLqr6lvX1kY3S3V58U&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=C4bpFf5oJa0lec%2BmxgwG/DzpFamuuRzaTlb4ZippBuT2yRR2x9EybaA9KgYyrkg3&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=dPFrZNWYGi5at9QLmFeK32fDwl0OlqhhXTP9FxlYke6zWIebLiN4nPkWEfXhEUfr&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=7T5fEQMwqOcfS4AJCvC6gu/lbFdbYMVCraZwTCLG%2Bi3MnoL7Nx6YWrNljHruqNVT&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=kXkSHqlWM2KDHG0r20LaWWu73zztTguoG/XlprA43mPh5RRqXkiMGVpopUMH9ywj&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=CZv%2Bga1vOdVTAi1AI0k/uY9Mw%2BzcVeDWPwbZ3sePneXoklXPWveIF5mjtms2eP0K&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=cMJkd2vtG%2B7eNfZaQUpofm1le8E2Fk2qzOw5UWQgX4Yhxdg7muxkD30s33fhuAuX&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=fQAm8N7C3dYsZiaNsiDThX8OlLysM9CWL8DqY%2BGyfxXwo54tV22B0PIt9U9oaBIB&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=AWlrZI6boeS4OcfhHM/LK42wj4h9Plrg1jDCSc7rO7XEJ3wAq3FTaRRXnZJCcozA&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=x%2B9kzq06z3Z9qDeRiys0OWiv2/8iwh3hxG%2B%2BBP%2BdpD%2BmrO7gQa3n121um7cEY4ou&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=dpl%2BR%2BdeForg459q0Tl%2Bv0ZKfEVy3fTpW9WKw5i3uxRErsg2dfYY4G/RV63XDAgB&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=nXix4VlsLpRsNifxdCW%2BVeaBNsbEi7lXs3eddsvHjBpC6se1F638lHfoH%2BzR8Cfb&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=jMBcT1Rb1h3%2BsKbWzRyvIIgcDz8r8uBLKrYh6j23idF4hP3k911na1nVpe0W7rLo&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=14S0KiMjc6MJymQjLllppTxd8TSvxEcE1vLVSSR9TZ34OmPgM6E68e16hXFroRbb&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=K/Os32avHDfGICBa4JeG/KKEu/8x%2Bo6cTQwjwsVZi/fcT6KcdN3y19Dpub%2Bi4ESN&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=XRxdq5QXhJSMRnv/p8V5pls%2BBDi4bMvd%2BT2Tiny/jdulHbCuQwSlh%2BeEE0IrORln&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=7QiCLC83uW0RyoNebdwXl9LjiO/TjbW3X5I8b6vWcM2E1M%2Bp7QL5Ib%2Bh0yUry3EF&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=mpznr2KgyGwtqPWapAEMu%2BtsqGDe8MDzOBrQGawtcLbXoUI5gzTgZ2V4tnJd%2BwuH&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Kk7rWIKL0KHBRa8ZN4tsrgfkfObop51GphS7rEvOPLeVOKqlWkO5SFWHytq1UY47&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=y6czYZa1%2BdRilx5n403EIu9OY1gj4oxwOqhEy0AM%2BrLkffe9SU4pUJSJLWtl/LUE&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pZXXQk4k%2BtoqwVm4846t5bTBFsjU4CsJPiz3M2U0bdr71C/GqFw2CnBoS1WzOqeg&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=DlC95uz8AvAsGdIgq06lP7PNDmGSuHwlBrPPWxyWkxnSMd587BfC/ZcZQoITGS4b&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=PhcS1Y1lIFSWVfaif2NqgVxFRoICyKa0L7T9LNuuP4KlEk5cO%2BuEXOJZHcwFrXhP&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=7lsWNyehA36LvSe7y5TjfGnjkBzOU4ykEstyz6YmZ6OdZ8gdmwIpGNX2sdtXJpLf&


 
 
 

05/30/2015 10:51    |Town of Brunswick |P      2
jhenze              |MAY 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 11
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
121611 42204  Victulars/Innkeepers       20,675      20,675      17,000.00      16,150.00                      3,675.00   82.2%*
121611 42205  Shellfish Licenses       15,175      15,175      18,825.00         925.00                     -3,650.00  124.1%*
121611 42206  Neutered/Spayed Dog L        4,510       4,510       4,802.00          62.00                       -292.00  106.5%*
121611 42207  Passport Fees            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121611 42208  Postage Fees            0           0         465.44          19.99                       -465.44  100.0%*
121611 42209  Passport Picture Reve            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
121911 42300  Planning Board Appl F       15,000      15,000      24,682.39       2,210.00                     -9,682.39  164.5%*
122121 42400  Fire Permits          500         500         300.00          40.00                        200.00   60.0%*
122221 42500  Conc Weapons Permits          600         600         915.00         110.00                       -315.00  152.5%*
122221 42501  Parking Permit fee            0           0         400.00         125.00                       -400.00  100.0%*
123131 42600  Public Works Opening            0           0       1,056.00          32.00                     -1,056.00  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Licenses & Fees                 323,512     323,512     347,205.10      43,821.70                    -23,693.10  107.3%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      323,512     323,512     347,205.10      43,821.70                    -23,693.10

 
30 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
131122 43505  FD EMPG grant       15,000      15,000      14,911.25            .00                         88.75   99.4%*
131122 43506  FD SAFER grant            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
131132 43103  Highway Grant Fund      214,000     214,000     197,188.00            .00                     16,812.00   92.1%*
131142 43104  State General Assista       24,000      24,000      29,044.98       3,029.46                     -5,044.98  121.0%*
131190 43102  State Tax Exemption R       40,000      40,000       8,175.51            .00                     31,824.49   20.4%*
131192 43101  State Revenue Sharing      977,671     977,671     945,273.30     151,562.58                     32,397.70   96.7%*
131192 43105  Emergency Management            0           0      11,146.71            .00                    -11,146.71  100.0%*
131192 43106  Snowmobile Receipts        1,400       1,400       1,628.52            .00                       -228.52  116.3%*
131192 43107  Property Tax Relief            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
134546 43120  State Education Subsi    9,946,831   9,946,831   9,097,249.71     665,894.45                    849,581.29   91.5%*
134546 43121  State Adult Educ. Sub            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
134546 43122  St Fiscal Stabilizati            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
134546 43125  Education Tax Relief            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
134546 43150  Federal Education Sub            0           0      13,758.19            .00                    -13,758.19  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental            11,218,902  11,218,902  10,318,376.17     820,486.49                    900,525.83   92.0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   11,218,902  11,218,902  10,318,376.17     820,486.49                    900,525.83

 
40 Charges for services               
_________________________________________

 
141111 44110  Agent Fee Auto Reg       50,000      50,000      47,720.49       5,712.00                      2,279.51   95.4%*
141111 44111  Agent Fee Boat/ATV/Sn        1,500       1,500       1,288.00         373.00                        212.00   85.9%*
141111 44121  Rental of Property            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=v0Q3OzAaEGmDionbQjoMGJ77tNBpIZipBJILsAWu6W41ro4KPYwhD6KDLNIQsbZV&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=u4%2BEIDawv7uUmRlbO4lWekanQLmdSNcAHrienxNkf3bmLeYaL%2BhA9Owu62nebnKJ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Czmy3HU2%2Bie1Gt6wxCS//KscW9WBGy9pmlDATFNIncZu%2Bu7iybvHLBwDsEOV/XWa&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=BbuW5lKA3U2kpN9/5L1bOOlEjxJQlL3cKB2yTU0scWtIqGCbLEq7fgiYwooY9SsX&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=oozvM3zCJJ/LWFoQSeNVs%2BUutpRnKftcyr68ilrnyAbJ%2BrrABuCT7eCG0JSws4es&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Aa3Qvz7D0TNatDRuksSP0qPHAiMITlfMxfj6MlmMyj9T7TKCjox5uFALo8l4CZAi&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5EwPRnnXuq68eYYgCriKMGoKWZ39hJN8HeqEdwpu0Jj0YdiSPYGnx/mOk2/fZmjb&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=MogO9puJ0hWR2hUFb7IHb9fJA8FGUu06PuC8uEWvcTlHwjZzW%2BJKtBbDWCVlaHfG&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rVfT/mrR5Gb3SrR4Lz/Ist8cHvcxm1aRmWnjIbLLs%2BraCj/38xbv98Y5jjmzPBjN&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=6KgvDHp76Who/BwknnVoC2P9z/6qgFMTL88lVvqqxr4yUEv2OYEFqSSgedRpvmK8&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=IlrMnVGw3btj9ybtKXcsNsLpS38j3DUQ1w/uCnZx1nd%2Bg%2Bdcx5mdS6LIzZjwLFy8&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=8v9sQXnTKmm5qUi9xbC7EyPQe6SYLGNg%2BuY9Ycd3XGDajE9tJBI6YaVc%2BMtSYQ0a&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=a7FrLn38CqapKlQFdmgITSZjnrz6I%2BKZc9C0Mbee4Bb68JW9tOFylKVa1mRfz1Pa&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=p2YmPB0uMhbdkNt8fLfedBsmXC6VBjrT2lBSFhAnXdso0QJqen6x5kx2x%2BC4mg0x&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=xihD7CYUgJEnPcGUsSbq0hp5kBhMl9Rlxo9548G4q1kcIOPOR3ihf5BhWLOrEfsl&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=exTbf17PFzpvGzB7yUaaMyY7XrjCgyG40nU88v%2BpUF/hFDXqJHahHJ8iNAK8dw%2B7&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5p6djBHxPSv130JYdQXSomYsW3Pu%2BsGlidq3JXl4Fi6MV1fwhO6Z49Gf8AV%2BQ56F&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=hnqATfwyE1aoM1zZcgH1YAW3lWW9eyMAWtdwjDSq%2BaqJTLaRdyS%2Bpfj4X/yzhnJ5&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=UlRbQc2rIov3R6Py58cciH0FW45lPwgISRscrGOJtvtZt5OC5VON2giIKb3Docy%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=viePAsm1eyzORIu7bCVE9D7xri4r5CoZoQ/u4txcvE968p%2BJbmSAHFe58dqjwjKH&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=fojNTXylygQj/s7Ho9jOhMcUbJYfRuw/YtRMo2svRcolYGiptiFqZP%2BzY7S%2Bx5RS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=EnHRTbIOBqFt25oqwpw1jVBtBAdN5io%2BgSTI2%2BY786pqn2G/BaV%2BhYqxnyS0asY9&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=kHJfCne%2BhCbgzcWlLeQPitCoPYpICiGo8JwWzPt6B4iKZX1QfE5Wwh8ELoMGhv9w&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=NABTmtmAIUIIr6gVBRnz99EhFBo4gqPkMD1ZZbFotKqq/X44MAwmGo1rggn2CZkO&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=FHgArW9hmaTX9cSpamsyc%2BH%2B1VQxj2XnopKukP45YWE4dJTGBYtNBgChKE8hRzX/&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=I9iJOKoEOdzHeYpO9DJ9M9KfYFQ4oyFj4FqDfzto4bUOdUMc8sZ7GrfR7BjxAbrn&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=UhXltaYpmxu/LKZlj/a%2BQNyJhBcNZXwzbDdceZGlVY0AfEoN426p5OZpqGdiT854&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=CB0GUGxxDaawsBu/w1vYSk0KSJ0PgAtCeOea3q%2B22B4LiwvUEIb25kk8hcFgAQlP&


 
 
 

05/30/2015 10:51    |Town of Brunswick |P      3
jhenze              |MAY 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 11
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
141111 44140  Housing Services Fees            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
141211 44121  Rental of Property            0           0       1,100.00         100.00                     -1,100.00  100.0%*
141611 44131  Advertising Fees            0           0       1,092.52            .00                     -1,092.52  100.0%*
142121 44155  Ambulance Service Fee      875,000     875,000     800,336.72      73,291.30                     74,663.28   91.5%*
142121 44166  Special Detail - Fire        1,000       1,000       2,415.60            .00                     -1,415.60  241.6%*
142221 44161  Witness Fees        3,000       3,000       3,563.87          63.87                       -563.87  118.8%*
142221 44162  Police Reports        3,600       3,600       3,766.50            .00                       -166.50  104.6%*
142221 44163  School Resource Offic       84,000      84,000      84,000.00            .00                           .00  100.0%*
142221 44164  Youth Aid Officer Rei            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
142221 44165  Special Detail - Poli        1,000       1,000      43,749.00       2,848.00                    -42,749.00 4374.9%*
142221 44167  Dispatch Services fee      141,500     141,500     130,501.98      10,994.27                     10,998.02   92.2%*
143131 44174  PW Labor & Materials            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
143431 44175  Recycling Revenue       25,000      25,000      18,305.45       2,696.65                      6,694.55   73.2%*
144545 44100  School Tuition, etc      137,000     137,000      90,899.71       1,488.41                     46,100.29   66.4%*
145051 44121  Rental of Property            0           0       1,920.00            .00                     -1,920.00  100.0%*
145051 44185  Parks            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
145051 44187  Coffin Pond            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
145051 44189  Recreation Outside Se            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 

 
TOTAL Charges for services          1,322,600   1,322,600   1,230,659.84      97,567.50                     91,940.16   93.0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,322,600   1,322,600   1,230,659.84      97,567.50                     91,940.16

 
50 Fines & Penalties                  
_________________________________________

 
151621 45103  Unlicensed Dog Fines        6,250       6,250      10,125.00         300.00                     -3,875.00  162.0%*
152121 45104  False Alarm Fire        1,000       1,000         325.00            .00                        675.00   32.5%*
152121 45107  Fire Code Violation F            0           0         200.00         100.00                       -200.00  100.0%*
152221 45100  Ordinance Fines          600         600       1,930.00         301.00                     -1,330.00  321.7%*
152221 45101  Parking Tickets       20,000      20,000      36,840.00       2,840.00                    -16,840.00  184.2%*
152221 45102  Leash Law Fines          600         600          50.00            .00                        550.00    8.3%*
152221 45105  False Alarm Police          300         300          10.00            .00                        290.00    3.3%*
152221 45106  Restitution            0           0       1,372.88          19.93                     -1,372.88  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Fines & Penalties                28,750      28,750      50,852.88       3,560.93                    -22,102.88  176.9%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       28,750      28,750      50,852.88       3,560.93                    -22,102.88

 
60 Interest earned                    
_________________________________________

 
161193 46100  Interest Earned       40,000      40,000       8,476.53       1,680.36                     31,523.47   21.2%*

 
TOTAL Interest earned                  40,000      40,000       8,476.53       1,680.36                     31,523.47   21.2%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       40,000      40,000       8,476.53       1,680.36                     31,523.47

 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=/tipUjpHw3a6i3lbZL24lRMQYsv9%2ByOq8VTusDgV3tY9xAXRbcoTeQQ5QT6J%2BPft&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=OmjhzX6dDzc%2Bm6FxaRnY5orgwCi9nR5kowbfEJ8hfFAUe688qKOZKzNzaTUD8obz&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Rt3FfwW8Stm3BS4Pa1W6QKYm9ewJGJ1aKu5f%2B1jLVS8EeWBQJK5mgVoNXjJq0Bzu&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2Zsf%2B3WOToH6X7EOBODNvTBxnnIUe97FL6fibWoxujYl7vxS6wo%2BomzQ6id3Ifwm&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=IbLz0/PyxGbjMT3to4Pwu22I126INCS0sFcNnWEKYtawvuCZAfq3lP/j8EkUGNZN&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=g5A0Ywv/C69KSudi4TVlaB6tZPWxCvcbj%2BBOGP2ssaeIsIiaqyZSioHba0EtdYMO&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=mT6eW1EVD8sYQC4nGTpK8BLqexK4mqzItLAcZHVlc39UZExgVnF6%2BNPr9Hnpdd/T&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=yXY8eE4ay9X3fHioTIHYd2jgoVNBYaDa8RdF9SW9igSevvACgBXQz3T68Fdoc91E&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=x/pdVKivrmsmieERruvzWD/gg1HY0j/WRVrQjpFfboLhzdO18rLiW553cLvvJish&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=xNT%2ByMkmzLIwjOhaBbXLdAv1gEYxln0sVDtMlxJtmDdb9F01u6pqW7vQYjliLoX5&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=g7r6wAGmMjl6dqixLj/2xcM6BC4TH7spyDfoTH87Y5%2BlruGZsmP2spyrEv6O875v&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=JxENuvYQIHBsHmzc%2BRoDKVTcHbLL/Hg5a6/ed193RdKpYanM9iud%2BTincBktFv5S&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=jxiExy%2BdEZyEjZhLI1fBTZABO%2BxwQePWGK0bRQo9K06xpF5p/25Jtlgv2jRqg7id&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=mZBlt36FOOxG6t4mJ8DMe8Nq/ZqXdwFeCv5O4SnS/uTMg228egrR9neYMLnDMLmP&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=QUrHpN4IvahBeFnxMVF7k98r/9qgkF/MZbzxmw/3e3VO/DdkFddW%2B6BklpsUQCi9&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=DEWYQM2WcaPnX%2BS6jE/7vT3P9gNX%2BChHAbOUnX0gT9T7Dhv7tQ4jJnDML60HMmXH&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5lkbNw7EZVRqgFNlrv1RWR%2B99uk7Zc5A/XzDub1ib0/uBmBM4dKm%2Bn7DvNguqimN&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=z3XkJn5uTrQhS6Ct7mEc2uRKE9JgJPNiVh4tATs6HQwiiyG1xdew2dwfzGFBAEo4&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=F%2BiMs0hjzAmEIHHGKWc/wmIS1/gudb4JEWhUBvMV9A1/GzC%2B3nJQEj5RAgsZ%2BojK&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BQVr/h5Yz7Sik4P%2B6uS4qwunu2YaA3s9W7Lre00uMr000uhbdaFTTBVXLHlm2xl9&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=3zSz8WqoIajQIaxug9rmhtf0/5nrUFCm3wCSjh80QbpwRgZ9kvqBgOPSmIU2zoua&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=AiWA4U8utdam3642HQe20%2BRx7lhc7UpyUN0vyiduSvDhBDAjt0dxJqd1KpsgOnDp&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=wWviVwsHvqLirJ2xGUlyxa2tNp0TnTmh9SafJ9e3Awm/gwd1x034PAlR%2BrZnj7eW&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=lxpl95DvEMIFqMsAz%2BkgKUZgFr9a8EHJfyK6XMHsXD13CyvVMypc0BWxPtfmRpKk&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Ghh1BC5KXY7iQ02Y9zncdHabBmvLCJibSmkB58rwnp4wSH74MwLX93PDABNEVCsh&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=w3QDrnzmZOd6OIQ7A7FOfczw2UWdiP1hnqxuOyzCZuxLevDB6fpF0wh9Pt28QLsa&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=RCgnrpSpoC2RaxamALS65dKr6Cxhl9DpEk/A%2BY7HRVTFCyjrudM3ATvrjEkkEjJA&


 
 
 

05/30/2015 10:51    |Town of Brunswick |P      4
jhenze              |MAY 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 11
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

70 Donations                          
_________________________________________

 
171952 47000  BDC Contrib to Econ D       94,000      94,000      94,000.00            .00                           .00  100.0%*
171952 47001  MRRA - Eco Dev positi            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
171952 47002  MRRA - MCOG DUES       15,000      15,000            .00            .00                     15,000.00     .0%*

 
TOTAL Donations                       109,000     109,000      94,000.00            .00                     15,000.00   86.2%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      109,000     109,000      94,000.00            .00                     15,000.00

 
80 Use of fund balance                
_________________________________________

 
181100 48000  Unapprop General Fund    1,000,000   1,200,000            .00            .00                  1,200,000.00     .0%*
181100 48001  Bal of State Revenue       50,000      50,000            .00            .00                     50,000.00     .0%*
181100 48002  Highway Grant Fund Ba            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
181100 48003  Property Tax Relief B            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
184500 48003  Allocation for School      185,000     185,000            .00            .00                    185,000.00     .0%*
184500 48004  School Balance Forwar    2,810,000   2,810,000            .00            .00                  2,810,000.00     .0%*
184500 48005  Restricted-Sch Bond P      342,000     342,000            .00            .00                    342,000.00     .0%*

 
TOTAL Use of fund balance           4,387,000   4,587,000            .00            .00                  4,587,000.00     .0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    4,387,000   4,587,000            .00            .00                  4,587,000.00

 
90 Other                              
_________________________________________

 
191011 49000  Administration Miscel            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
191111 46200  A/R Late Fees            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
191111 49000  Finance Miscellaneous        1,000       1,000       4,047.90         921.65                     -3,047.90  404.8%*
191111 49101  Workers Comp Dividend            0           0      16,160.00            .00                    -16,160.00  100.0%*
191111 49102  Energy Rebate            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
191111 49104  Property & Casualty D            0           0       9,267.00            .00                     -9,267.00  100.0%*
191111 49105  Postage & Handling            0           0       2,573.02         272.00                     -2,573.02  100.0%*
191111 49106  W/C Proceeds            0           0      12,575.34       2,884.52                    -12,575.34  100.0%*
191111 49210  Insurance Proceeds            0           0         375.07            .00                       -375.07  100.0%*
191111 49211  Incident Recovery            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
191192 49100  Cable Television      225,000     225,000     186,215.36      63,227.23                     38,784.64   82.8%*
191194 49150  Gen Govt Asset Sales            0           0         150.00            .00                       -150.00  100.0%*
191311 49000  Assessing Miscellaneo            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
191411 49000  Codes Miscellaneous            0           0         100.00         100.00                       -100.00  100.0%*

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=FbCcvCii/%2Bit7eemaqF0zAyqHuysQBX6kvdBEJeyt9/1qE%2BfkJf5j4IirwwbAm8P&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=sWF4Weid7AJ7drwu5r3ru140p%2BJepsCZC5IVe/2mi5GX/Fy7xQmt8wpNJLjAWQUT&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=QzhneryGV5rjc69L4lod/E8V4QChmxrGS%2B5sDyike6Z3Pdz3k/qIMAEuMowqYk7y&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ClpSfPq34esMWSiDi9s5qZTGQO/uWVZGgHjzAaDPU74z6bazpuqLQQkpuNs32tSy&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=J357l10Qmnjc%2B6UkqyvDNjO9n7fj%2Bahvuc4OvV5%2BQI7l7/2N0DcSV5GQaRTT/UNS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=L8xjgKiHowqeJ%2BsFQlLDhM6zQ8qnau2HWZW2J9dW%2BNSsbsrWV0wIEEufCNFvnasd&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=S9OJ2qtHdjDCfIe4p7vySfPHrSK%2BVUHlPNSsaJdKYWLDRGukxQciRH2Mwq/%2BTaqZ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=x35jF/FET62q8AYMnO%2B%2BjMVNeBAdLrf7BLv%2BHwmD55gUtEQH8yNyk5sGb7/GCrJV&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=sN7YY65bqCyydefpnHAYI%2BaxwBgKPAOLM7FZEiH%2BdyibDg2V8FtecsdL1D%2B9/2XI&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0IGOSesuFQOqo8PjJbFJeW2BnfS%2B4PQX13jR8ie6eTX9vLjkcVqNVAA5kDt2pFk5&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=9kepsxQm5rPA/mYuK7FCgPIj5bCcGXE%2BjXbubk2yDgf7zP%2BGvo4iWd26k04UPDNJ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=tlJffa7eMs1wFdIQfLoVu44048Kp4EyRBPdSP6LGbXQuNZgaPjm40ZORfe9yMCdd&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=6NS1mzEC8okyEYoJ3AFSSZVcUjOZRmQvJoplrCr8z35eZnsI2vyL770jtOn%2BjA0K&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=aY12qlatTLq65DhVIpnmiVzvcZbb3cjH0JEVUhRRHJS/euO52Hks8ktkxye5c2qL&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=s6gyJPw7cxsmBLZAEgf7ewvJMsMkivBq7L2y4ntg6Z88RcRe0N%2B42xid0Cd5Nt/L&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=lBlf0kp2izNU3skWgmZSmSSjE9JYOu53dXlHUjbP8dmh3s6jre8cg%2BZ2Sq%2Bk9168&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pvWYW/KKxsskbLCwt8x0KJnozPkEf1ec4hDyBdroi38zJb87ZiQUtIwvzGSpIENS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Kslv81nXynMRV76CA5GwU4do1U2nXRCv/aI7X6hYXSk2vtFcunEUfQNjE5spp/Kr&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=xS%2ByFd6xJoAnEO2JAxtHjLx5%2BHByqpBaJy6qhEH/DLOAxiZiGa5ymSXA9s11YzvK&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=8sxLWhuLqL39PAnqvKU1unPbdw1SzBDonkO7NyWPzQkOBHw9KNutzzfOGOVnVxz3&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=qOpSlTuiUnKO2GZF0kuFTof2Jnd6Us/9cdr1qy7r9sEHsnOfwAHgbzs7R0/syN0s&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=oT0iHhSK/TINVkfhX4xl5R8kwpSREqSIuxkIfLrtq8uLo60FKENWPc2qOz8k3sWI&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=aVTCnW9TlIQqi/BOj/hCTeRBm3hUBMLyq2Y9TWm2SpjOLF8955SaBFnjHTn7ZjbM&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rCdMnGUUYPSp%2BEiVGdwWZTy4cH4hNi5VKmgm54lh7O39N6ux0XwfrdHvqXqharcf&


 
 
 

05/30/2015 10:51    |Town of Brunswick |P      5
jhenze              |MAY 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 11
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
191611 49000  Town Clerk Miscellane        1,250       1,250       1,326.00         134.75                        -76.00  106.1%*
191911 49000  Planning Miscellaneou          150         150         431.50            .00                       -281.50  287.7%*
191941 49000  Natural Resources Mis            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
192121 49000  Fire Miscellaneous          800         800       1,251.04          26.52                       -451.04  156.4%*
192194 49151  Fire Vehicle Sales            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
192221 49000  Police Miscellaneous            0           0       3,076.03          25.00                     -3,076.03  100.0%*
192294 49153  Police Vehicle Sales        8,000       8,000            .00            .00                      8,000.00     .0%*
193131 49000  Public Works Miscella            0           0       1,794.87            .00                     -1,794.87  100.0%*
193131 49155  PW Fuel Sales - Gasol            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
193131 49156  PW Fuel Sales - Diese            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
193194 49154  Public Works Vehicle            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
194141 49000  Human Services Misc            0           0            .00            .00                           .00     .0% 
194141 49103  General Assistance Re            0           0       1,323.54            .00                     -1,323.54  100.0%*
194545 49000  School Miscellaneous      118,000     118,000     119,779.00      13,456.24                     -1,779.00  101.5%*
195051 49000  Recreation Miscellane            0           0       1,004.28           3.95                     -1,004.28  100.0%*
199980 48100  General Fund Transfer      710,000     710,000     511,224.73            .00                    198,775.27   72.0%*

 
TOTAL Other                         1,064,200   1,064,200     872,674.68      81,051.86                    191,525.32   82.0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,064,200   1,064,200     872,674.68      81,051.86                    191,525.32

 
GRAND TOTAL   58,099,543  58,299,543  53,052,241.36   1,351,410.72                  5,247,301.64   91.0%

 
                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=P1rgLSBMvyDngeKNXwzejlXy6V90dOTSjKZ0baHe%2Baxi3IhNEhTiauJfNpmu8UqT&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=PZCKX3LJMHw8EkPfNbCqG2s/0TEfVW7KMOoBp6xgO4H64%2B4lIqaIHy%2BHBrhnGDgj&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=qWFC7RUhEB0WmMywgrQ6BfBrjyre%2BtMfmgGLbzy3vV/Czfr5jC/jnJNoFQ2zaNXb&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=JNsAdjsC78OorHVmulsNvYMThFD4AAX4TXwIxIGqkON1po8yK410FjhuwyugTJO0&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=cljz5UqeIVcRJBYNrt3oG7pE%2BEaFgbCJk3B5CKPwL9k9fMfRKix9YQHNC5oVK6oU&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=bSiA8DKLludwa3gPzY%2BqqU1/cJehtRn/dIoVfneLeXNHwDSG7jKGnrelDHJuXB1F&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=QkbkiD8px%2B%2BEaoEP2xntgW5HY7%2BXSGIxzo%2B7QCTyndWZ0Ng%2BotT//uw4dBZLEKO1&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1N3n%2BEhGQlNF6jxG%2Bqri4AYXvfesp8XYSw7/kf/Co01tAEEXXPiisF2vzBL7J/X4&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ogbZB%2BRgUd8iaRImbNO5zdpuIk0QyrFHnz6U/VXeWOx5Uqier1GuXgNRc4INXtwl&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Q91xxkiWMfoM8RQlzZ0zVb4K1JWwR9uT6B1I9TND%2BnwIFCP8O4vdWa%2BNdlz%2BG3gO&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rdty8f3tFZF8W5DSixQBkt5hVT5pQFuUEHMxRH0rXsUpCU04HiBnxsk8kqXU3GU1&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=eNKtCd/xV81%2B7OM662xrOUg8nwi3%2BgdGD2LmkUFD1HKy15aeC85Wo%2Br0HTjuvFMy&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=7N5PAHBB4S18jMVU7Sp9vZxY%2BtZm5s/YbppbmmgmXsTYutElqmgjAPP3Phfr2k%2BN&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=eIbKp3qOo47VW3zc3rge/ItDE0bTnTVxSm9MofnVNFJjE1FTlq4pjFdBEU7%2B30d%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=uobNzOzqRZe%2B6T6jgWLDtRF%2Bcr0oICOwbHtsCcDJBiQ7oQkNKwTLaLcG8Ef3atsl&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=76VzTLcvrXkFvlVdu4tKJKml6reaEdWclydUtZu/QwWRYj4HBdSwuda3oi8x2CXU&


 
 
 

05/30/2015 10:49    |Town of Brunswick |P      1
jhenze              |MAY 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 11
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

00 Fill                               
_________________________________________

 
19000 General Fund Transfers Out    1,147,860   1,147,860   1,153,360.00       5,500.00            .00      -5,500.00  100.5%

 
TOTAL Fill                          1,147,860   1,147,860   1,153,360.00       5,500.00            .00      -5,500.00  100.5%

 
 

10 General Government                 
_________________________________________

 
11000 Administration      489,397     489,397     494,266.80      51,541.23          80.00      -4,949.80  101.0%
11100 Finance Department      715,425     715,425     596,110.86      72,431.42         539.20     118,774.94   83.4%
11150 Technology Services Dept      327,848     327,848     293,727.95      18,884.75       1,782.50      32,337.55   90.1%
11200 Municipal Officers       85,615      85,615      62,217.33       1,596.80       3,571.00      19,826.67   76.8%
11210 Munic Bldg - 85 Union      210,720     210,720     173,318.15      17,569.85       6,254.07      31,147.78   85.2%
11230 Risk Management      473,750     473,750     452,224.08         795.16            .00      21,525.92   95.5%
11240 Employee benefits            0           0    -186,330.82     -14,047.57            .00     186,330.82  100.0%
11250 Cable TV       47,790      47,790      44,232.63       5,357.29            .00       3,557.37   92.6%
11300 Assessing      293,660     293,660     239,266.24      27,334.00       1,745.00      52,648.76   82.1%
11600 Town Clerk & Elections      362,077     365,477     310,841.70      35,736.00       4,750.00      49,885.30   86.4%
11900 Planning Department      490,779     510,504     439,085.05      54,357.66       4,133.03      67,285.93   86.8%
11950 Economic Development Dept      109,087     109,087      89,457.45      11,218.26            .00      19,629.55   82.0%

 
TOTAL General Government            3,606,148   3,629,273   3,008,417.42     282,774.85      22,854.80     598,000.79   83.5%

 
 

20 Public Safety                      
_________________________________________

 
12100 Fire Department    3,104,392   3,113,742   2,755,485.20     316,242.71      21,649.20     336,607.60   89.2%
12150 Central Fire Station       42,089      45,739      32,990.14       4,110.42         900.00      11,849.10   74.1%
12160 Emerson Fire Station       41,825      41,825      41,400.77       3,868.02       2,112.78      -1,688.55  104.0%
12200 Police Department    3,762,478   3,762,478   3,304,908.84     389,540.87       2,340.40     455,228.76   87.9%
12210 Police Special Detail            0           0      37,758.04       3,234.87            .00     -37,758.04  100.0%
12220 Emergency Services Dispatch      777,412     777,412     671,446.46      79,695.00            .00     105,965.54   86.4%
12250 Police Station Building       98,020      98,020      86,822.29       7,115.65       1,332.38       9,865.33   89.9%
12310 Streetlights      208,000     208,000     186,130.74      16,956.62            .00      21,869.26   89.5%
12320 Traffic Signals       31,600      31,600      22,150.25       6,352.75       6,000.00       3,449.75   89.1%
12330 Hydrants      438,790     438,790     336,447.80            .00            .00     102,342.20   76.7%
12340 Civil Emergency Preparedness        2,000       2,000       1,662.65            .00            .00         337.35   83.1%

 
TOTAL Public Safety                 8,506,606   8,519,606   7,477,203.18     827,116.91      34,334.76   1,008,068.30   88.2%

 
 

30 Public Works                       
_________________________________________

 



 
 
 

05/30/2015 10:49    |Town of Brunswick |P      2
jhenze              |MAY 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 11
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
30       Public Works                       APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

13100 Public Works Administration      429,111     429,111     378,989.95      45,649.11       5,590.00      44,531.05   89.6%
13110 PW General Maintenance    1,706,214   1,906,214   1,814,583.39     151,442.30      62,194.09      29,436.52   98.5%
13130 Refuse Collection      581,847     581,847     515,211.70      50,259.23      59,474.41       7,160.89   98.8%
13140 Recycling      297,729     297,729     248,805.63      23,450.93      47,669.81       1,253.56   99.6%
13150 PW Central Garage      741,300     751,500     815,684.41      78,526.13      17,515.30     -81,699.71  110.9%

 
TOTAL Public Works                  3,756,201   3,966,401   3,773,275.08     349,327.70     192,443.61         682.31  100.0%

 
 

40 Human Services                     
_________________________________________

 
14100 General Assistance      163,607     163,607     155,162.12      18,023.43       2,896.66       5,548.22   96.6%
14120 Health & Social Services        2,766       2,766       2,343.09            .00            .00         422.91   84.7%

 
TOTAL Human Services                  166,373     166,373     157,505.21      18,023.43       2,896.66       5,971.13   96.4%

 
 

45 Education                          
_________________________________________

 
14500 School Department   35,763,587  35,763,587  27,753,364.06   3,240,171.75            .00   8,010,222.94   77.6%

 
TOTAL Education                    35,763,587  35,763,587  27,753,364.06   3,240,171.75            .00   8,010,222.94   77.6%

 
 

50 Recreation and Culture             
_________________________________________

 
15000 Recreation Administration      456,225     466,225     414,092.95      49,069.84         520.24      51,611.81   88.9%
15050 Rec Buildings and Grounds      678,434     678,434     563,044.65      64,459.33      15,507.35      99,882.00   85.3%
15250 Rec Building 211      160,327     160,327     115,510.43       4,590.12      12,912.00      31,904.57   80.1%
15300 Teen Center       15,000      15,000      15,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
15310 People Plus      115,000     115,000     110,673.55            .00            .00       4,326.45   96.2%
15400 Curtis Memorial Library    1,285,000   1,285,000   1,167,891.87     105,833.33            .00     117,108.13   90.9%

 
TOTAL Recreation and Culture        2,709,986   2,719,986   2,386,213.45     223,952.62      28,939.59     304,832.96   88.8%

 
 

60 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
16000 County tax    1,333,350   1,333,350   1,333,350.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

05/30/2015 10:49    |Town of Brunswick |P      3
jhenze              |MAY 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 11
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
60       Intergovernmental                  APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental             1,333,350   1,333,350   1,333,350.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 

70 Unclassified                       
_________________________________________

 
17000 Promotion and Development      164,917     164,917     153,598.95          15.00            .00      11,318.05   93.1%
17010 Additional School Assistance       10,000      10,000      10,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
17020 Cemetery Care        3,000       3,000       1,500.00            .00            .00       1,500.00   50.0%
17030 Wage Adjustment Account        9,000       9,000      30,000.00            .00            .00     -21,000.00  333.3%
17052 School Master Plan            0      14,527            .00            .00      14,526.97            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Unclassified                    186,917     201,444     195,098.95          15.00      14,526.97      -8,181.95  104.1%

 
 

80 Debt Service                       
_________________________________________

 
18020 2006 CIP G/O Bonds      252,000     252,000     252,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
18030 2011 GO CIP Bonds      264,890     264,890     264,890.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
18040 Police Station Bond      405,625     405,625     405,625.02            .00            .00           -.02  100.0%
18050 2010 Elementary School Bond            0           0         232.54            .00            .00        -232.54  100.0%

 
TOTAL Debt Service                    922,515     922,515     922,747.56            .00            .00        -232.56  100.0%

 
 

GRAND TOTAL   58,099,543  58,370,395  48,160,534.91   4,946,882.26     295,996.39   9,913,863.92   83.0%
 

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



	
	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 June	11,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 NNEPRA	Layover	Facility	and	Auxiliary	Power	Unit	
	
	
On	June	3rd,	the	Maine	Department	of	Environmental	Protection	(Maine	DEP	or	DEP)	released	a	draft	
stormwater	license	for	the	layover	facility	the	Northern	New	England	Passenger	Rail	Authority	
(NNEPRA)	intends	to	construct	at	the	Brunswick	West	site.		The	parties	to	the	permit	process	were	
required	to	submit	written	comments	on	the	draft	to	the	DEP	by	June	10th.		Maine	DEP	expects	to	
issue	a	final	license	decision	on	June	17th.		A	copy	of	the	draft	license	is	attached.	
	
In	a	related	matter,	we	have	received	a	copy	of	the	letter	the	Transportation	Committee	sent	to	
NNEPRA	regarding	the	installation	of	the	auxiliary	power	unit	(APU).		Again,	NNEPRA	plans	to	install	
an	APU	at	the	Brunswick	West	site.		NNEPRA	expects	installation	to	take	place	later	this	summer.		The	
letter	is	clear	that	the	installation	of	the	additional	air	compressor	unit	was	subject	to	funding.		To	
date,	the	source	of	that	funding	has	not	been	identified.		A	copy	of	the	Transportation	Committee’s	
letter	is	also	attached.	
	
	
Attachments	
	
	
	



S T A T E  O F  M A I N E  

DEP A R T MEN T  OF  EN VIR ON MEN T A L PR OT ECT ION  
 
 
 
 
 

 PAUL R. LEPAGE PATRICIA W. AHO 

 GOVERNOR COMMISSIONER 

AUGUSTA BANGOR PORTLAND PRESQUE ISLE 
17 STATE HOUSE STATION 106 HOGAN ROAD, SUITE 6 312 CANCO ROAD 1235 CENTRAL DRIVE, SKYWAY PARK 
AUGUSTA, MAINE 04333-0017 BANGOR, MAINE 04401 PORTLAND, MAINE 04103 PRESQUE ISLE, MAINE 04769 
(207) 287-7688 FAX: (207) 287-7826 (207) 941-4570 FAX: (207) 941-4584 (207) 822-6300 FAX: (207) 822-6303 (207) 764-0477 FAX: (207) 760-3143 

 

web site: www.maine.gov/dep  

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO: The Parties and Interested Persons  

 

FROM: Bill Bullard, Project Manager, Bureau of Land & Water Quality 

 

DATE: June 3, 2015 

 

SUBJ: The Department’s Draft License Decision on the Stormwater Management Law 

Permit Application Submitted to the Department by Northern New England 

Passenger Rail Authority 

****************************************************************************** 

Attached please find the Maine Department of Environmental Protection’s (Department) draft 

license decision on Northern New England Passenger Rail Authority’s Storm Water 

Management Law permit application (Draft Department Order #L-26119-NJ-C-N).  The 

proposed project is located in Brunswick, Maine.  Following a public hearing, the Department is 

required to provide the draft license decision to the parties (applicant and intervenors) and 

interested persons for review and comment. 

 

All comments on the draft Order must be received by the Department on or before Wednesday, 

June 10, 2015 at 5:00 p.m.  Each party must ensure its comments are copied to all names on the 

public hearing service list.  Comments should be directed to: 

 

 By mail –     Bill Bullard, Project Manager 

   Maine Department of Environmental Protection 

   Bureau of Land & Water Quality 

   312 Canco Road 

   Portland, Maine 04103 

  

 Electronically – Bill.Bullard@maine.gov 

 

 By hand –      Bill Bullard, Project Manager 

   Maine Department of Environmental Protection 

   312 Canco Road 

   Portland, Maine 

 

After considering the comments received on the draft Order, the Department will issue the final 

license decision by Wednesday, June 17, 2015. 

 

The Department’s technical review comments associated with this permit application are 

available on the Department’s website at www.maine.gov/dep/permits/blf in the file, “DEP 

Review Comments.”  

mailto:Bill.Bullard@maine.gov
http://www.maine.gov/dep/permits/blf


 
STATE OF MAINE 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
17 STATE HOUSE STATION AUGUSTA, MAINE 04333-0017 

 
DEPARTMENT ORDER 

 

 

DRAFT 

 

IN THE MATTER OF 

 

 

NORTHERN NEW ENGLAND PASSENGER ) STORM WATER MANAGEMENT LAW 

RAIL AUTHORITY ) 

Brunswick, Cumberland County )  

LAYOVER FACILITY STORMWATER PLAN ) 

L-26119-NJ-C-N   (Approval) ) FINDINGS OF FACT AND ORDER 

   

 

Pursuant to the provisions of 38 M.R.S.A. § 420-D, and Chapters 500 and 502 of the 

Department’s Regulations, the Maine Department of Environmental Protection (Department) has 

considered the application of NORTHERN NEW ENGLAND PASSENGER RAIL 

AUTHORITY (NNEPRA) with its supportive data, the public hearing testimony, the agency 

review comments, the written comments submitted by the general public, and other related 

materials on file and FINDS THE FOLLOWING FACTS: 

 

1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

 

A. History:   

 

On August 14, 2013, NNEPRA filed an application with the Department for a Storm 

Water Management Law Permit for the construction of a stormwater management system 

to serve a proposed passenger rail equipment layover facility to be constructed in 

Brunswick.
1
  In Department Order #L-26119-NJ-A-N, dated November 11, 2013, the 

Department issued a permit for the proposed project, which would create 3.9 acres of 

impervious area and 6.2 acres of disturbed area upon completion.  

 

BMR Brunswick, LLC, Charles F. Wallace, Jr., Daniel Sullivan, and Frederick Schwab 

(petitioners) appealed the Department’s issuance of the permit to the Cumberland County 

Superior Court.  The petitioners maintained that certain neighboring landowners, 

including the three named petitioners, who owned property southerly of the project site 

were not properly notified by the applicant of the permit application and were therefore 

unable to comment on or otherwise participate in the review process.   In BMR 

Brunswick, LLC v. DEP, the Court held that the petitioners are abutters as defined in the 

Department’s Rule Concerning the Processing of Applications and other Administrative 

Matters (Chapter 2), 06-096 CMR 2(1)(A) (as amended Aug. 25, 2013), and were 

therefore entitled to notice of NNEPRA’s stormwater permit application.  In a decision 

dated July 2, 2014, the Court vacated the Department’s approval of Department Order 

#L-26119-NJ-A-N. 

                                                           
1
 A permit under the Site Location of Development Act, 38 M.R.S.A. §§ 481 et seq.,  is not required as a result of 

preemption by federal law, 49 U.S.C. § 24902(j). 



L-26119-NJ-C-N  2 of 22  

 

 

A second application for a stormwater management system to serve the proposed 

passenger rail equipment layover facility was received by the Department on August 6, 

2014.  That application—DEP Project #L-26119-NJ-B-N—was found to be unacceptable 

for processing due to incomplete information regarding design and construction plan 

details of the proposed stormwater management system.     

 

A third application, with additional information, was received by the Department on 

September 12, 2014 and was found to be complete for processing on October 3, 2014.  

The materials in the record from the first permit application and its review were 

incorporated into the record of the third application. 

 

A public hearing on the application was held on March 25, 2015 at the Brunswick Golf 

Club in Brunswick. The Department granted intervenor status to J. Maurice L. Bisson, 

Robert N. Morrison, Charles F. Wallace, Jr. and the Brunswick West Neighborhood 

Coalition (collectively Coalition) and TrainRiders Northeast (TrainRiders), and they 

participated in the public hearing process.   A portion of the hearing was devoted to 

receiving testimony from members of the general public.  Written comments were 

received throughout the application processing period, until the close of the hearing on 

March 25, 2015. 

 

B. Summary:  The proposed project is a modified version of the project approved in 

Department Order #L-26119-NJ-A-N and referenced above.  The applicant proposes to 

construct a stormwater management system for a passenger rail equipment layover 

facility to be used for overnight storage, light maintenance and refueling of  

passenger trains.  The proposed project includes a train enclosure building, rail spurs to 

access the building, vehicle travel lanes, parking areas, utilities to support the facility, and 

a stormwater management system and wet pond.   

 

The proposed stormwater management system includes grassed swales, a roof drip edge 

collection system, and a catch basin collection system, all discharging to a wet pond for 

treatment and then to an unnamed tributary stream that drains to the Androscoggin River.  

The system is designed to capture and treat stormwater runoff from the proposed 

passenger rail equipment layover facility building, new rail tracks, paved and gravel 

access drives, and paved parking areas.  The proposed project will create a total of 4.3 

acres of impervious area and 6.7 acres of disturbed area.  The project site is located 

between Church Road and Stanwood Street in Brunswick.   

 

The proposed project is depicted on a set of plans, the first of which is entitled 

“Brunswick Layover Facility – Cover Sheet – Northern New England Passenger Rail 

Authority,” prepared on behalf of the applicant by Deluca Hoffman Associates, Inc., and 

dated June, 2013, with a latest revision date on any of the sheets of October 30, 2014.
2
  

During the Department’s review, at the request of Department staff, the applicant also 

submitted a plumbing plan and three drawings entitled “Stormwater Schematic,” “Utility 

                                                           
2
  During the Department’s review of the applications submitted by NNEPRA, DeLuca Hoffman Associates, Inc. 

was acquired by Fay, Spofford & Thorndike, Inc. 



L-26119-NJ-C-N  3 of 22  

 

Profiles,” and “Plumbing Sanitary Overall Plan,” with a latest revision date on any sheet 

of March 15, 2015.  These drawings were developed from existing project plans and were 

intended to clarify the designs of drainage and utility piping systems for the benefit of the 

parties involved in the public hearing process. 

 

C. Current Use of the Site:  The site of the proposed project contains existing 

railroad tracks and areas that are sparsely vegetated with shrubs and grasses.  A fringe of 

woodland is located along the northerly property line of the site.  There are no structures 

on the property other than the railroad tracks and a gravel access road for use by train 

personnel.  As a result of the past usage of the site during the era of coal-fired 

locomotives, contaminants associated with coal ash were identified in the soils at the site 

during a Limited Phase II Environmental Site Assessment conducted by the applicant in 

2011.  Because of the history of the site, the applicant developed a voluntary remedial 

action plan and submitted an application to the Department’s Voluntary Response Action 

Program (VRAP).  The action plan was approved as discussed further in Finding 3.   

 

2. STORMWATER STANDARDS: 

 

The proposed project includes approximately 6.7 acres of developed area of which 4.3 

acres is impervious area.  The site lies within the watershed of an unnamed tributary that 

drains to the Androscoggin River.  The project site is located adjacent to, but not within, 

an Urban Impaired Stream watershed of a different unnamed tributary to the 

Androscoggin River (near River Street).  The applicant submitted a stormwater 

management system plan based on the Basic, General, and Flooding Standards contained 

in the Department’s rules concerning Stormwater Management (Chapter 500), 06-096 

CMR 500 (as amended Dec. 27, 2011).  The proposed stormwater management system 

consists of grassed swales, a roof drip edge collection system, and catch basin collection 

system discharging to a wet pond for treatment.  Outflows from the wet pond will be 

discharged at a controlled rate to the unnamed stream which flows northerly 

approximately one-quarter mile until it reaches the Androscoggin River. 

 

A. Basic Standards:    

  

A project disturbing one acre or more must meet the Basic Standards for erosion and 

sedimentation control, inspection and maintenance, and housekeeping.   

 

(1) Erosion and Sedimentation Control:  A person who conducts, or causes to be 

conducted, an activity that involves filling, displacing or exposing soil or other earthen 

materials must take measures to prevent unreasonable erosion of soil or sediment beyond 

the project site or into a protected natural resource.  The applicant submitted an Erosion 

and Sedimentation Control Plan that is based on the performance standards contained in 

Appendix A of Chapter 500 and the Best Management Practices outlined in the Maine 

Erosion and Sediment Control Best Management Practices, which were developed by the 

Department.  This plan and plan sheets containing erosion control details were reviewed 

by, and revised in response to the comments of, the Division of Land Resource 

Regulation (DLRR) of the Bureau of Land and Water Quality (BLWQ).  Erosion control 



L-26119-NJ-C-N  4 of 22  

 

measures are shown on Sheets C-4.1, C-4.2, and C-4.3 of the plan set referenced above.  

Erosion control details and narratives are shown on sheets C-6.3, C-6.4A and C-6.4B of 

the same plan set and in Appendix G of the application.  The erosion control plan 

includes provisions for final stabilization and vegetation of exposed soil at the site. 

 

During the public hearing, one member of the public testifying expressed concern about 

the proposed fertilizer application rate for stabilizing the grassed areas upon project 

completion.  The erosion and sedimentation control plan submitted by the applicant 

includes a seeding plan as set forth in Appendix G, Attachment A of the application, and 

subsequently incorporated by reference in the applicant’s pre-filed testimony.  In order to 

minimize the potential to discharge excess nutrients to the unnamed stream and the 

Androscoggin River, the applicant proposes to base the fertilizer application rates on the 

results of soil testing of the topsoil used for the project. 

 

The Department finds that the Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plan submitted with 

the application meets the requirements of Chapter 500, Appendix A. 

 

Given the size and nature of the project site, the applicant must retain the services of a 

third party inspector in accordance with the Special Condition for Third Party Inspection 

Program, which is attached to this Order.    

 

To ensure that the Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plan is properly implemented, 

prior to the start of construction, the applicant must conduct a pre-construction meeting.  

This meeting must be attended by the applicant’s representative, Department staff, the 

applicant’s design engineer, the contractor, the Town of Brunswick, and the third-party 

inspector.  

 

(2) Inspection and Maintenance:  The applicant submitted an inspection and maintenance 

plan that addresses both short and long-term maintenance requirements of the stormwater 

management system.  The plan is set forth in Appendix H, Attachment E of the 

application, and is based on the standards contained in Appendix B of Chapter 500.  This 

plan was reviewed by, and revised in response to the comments of, DLRR.  The applicant 

will be responsible for the maintenance of the stormwater management system. 

 

Storm sewer grit and sediment materials removed from stormwater control structures 

during maintenance activities must be disposed of in compliance with the Maine Solid 

Waste Management Rules.  

 

(3) Housekeeping:  The applicant addressed the performance standards of the 

Housekeeping requirements outlined in Appendix C of Chapter 500 with the following 

submittals:   

 

a) Spill Prevention:  An applicant must demonstrate that controls will be used to prevent 

pollutants from being discharged from materials on site, including storage practices to 

minimize exposure of the materials to stormwater, and appropriate spill prevention, 

containment, and response planning and implementation.  The applicant submitted a 



L-26119-NJ-C-N  5 of 22  

 

plan to prevent and control the potential for the discharge of pollutants from materials 

on site.  The plan was reviewed by staff from the BLWQ’s Division of Environment 

Assessment (DEA).  DEA stated that the spill containment plan provided with the 

application as Exhibit 9 in the applicant’s pre-filed testimony is consistent with 

Department requirements for a Spill Prevention Plan under Chapter 500.  Any spill 

prevention plans developed by site subcontractors must be consistent with, and no 

less stringent than, the spill prevention plan submitted by the applicant.   Any 

petroleum spills must be reported to the Department within two hours of their 

discovery.   
 

b) Groundwater Protection:  Chapter 500, Appendix C(2) requires that, during 

construction, the applicant protect groundwater from contamination by spills of liquid 

petroleum products and other hazardous materials with the potential to contaminate 

groundwater.  The applicant proposes to utilize a designated refueling area isolated 

from potential infiltration areas and stormwater structures and will require each 

contractor to have a spill kit available and to follow the applicant’s Spill Containment 

Plan. 
 

c) Fugitive Sediment and Dust:  Chapter 500, Appendix C(3) requires that the  

construction of a project will not result in noticeable erosion of soils or fugitive dust 

emissions.   The applicant’s proposal includes the use of stone-on-fabric construction 

entrances, water, calcium chloride and polymer bonding agents for dust control.  All 

exposed soil will be stabilized with vegetation or hardscaping upon completion of 

construction. 
 

d) Debris and other materials:  The applicant’s construction plan includes measures to 

prevent litter, construction and demolition debris and liquid wastes from becoming 

pollutant sources during construction.  Contractors will be required to adhere to on-

site recycling of construction debris and to use individual dumpsters for daily disposal 

of metal, cardboard, masonry and other construction materials. 
 

e) Trench or Foundation Dewatering:  The applicant is proposing to install shallow 

groundwater wells in order to lower the water table during the construction of the 

building foundation footings and the wet pond.  The Coalition contends that 

contaminants in the soil may be disturbed and mobilized into the groundwater during 

this aspect of construction of the project.  The Coalition also questioned whether the 

unnamed stream on the southerly side of the project site would be affected by the 

dewatering activity during construction of the project.      

 

The applicant’s investigation of groundwater quality on the site showed that, with the 

exception of one exceedance for sodium levels in one monitoring well, analytical 

results reported that all constituents were below the applicable Federal Primary 

Drinking Water Standard Maximum Contaminant Levels or State of Maine Maximum 

Exposure Guidelines.  In its review comments, DEA stated that water quality data 

provided with the application do not indicate significant adverse impact on 

groundwater quality in the immediate area of the proposed project.  However, given 

the long-term historical land use of the site and much of the surrounding area, as the 



L-26119-NJ-C-N  6 of 22  

 

Coalition argued, it is possible that some spills may not have been reported or that 

other sources of contamination may exist that may not have been located.  Members 

of the public also testified as to their concerns on this particular issue.  As a 

precaution against unexpected sources of contamination, DEA recommended several 

precautionary measures as outlined in Finding 3(A) to be taken during dewatering 

activities.   

 

f) Non-stormwater discharges: The sanitary sewer plumbing drain lines in the passenger 

rail equipment layover facility building will discharge to the Town of Brunswick’s 

municipal sewer system.  Snowmelt from trains inside the building will be collected 

with an interior floor drain system and will discharge to the municipal sewer system.  

Snow melting from the trains outside of the layover building would not generally 

meet the definition of stormwater; however, any resulting runoff would be captured 

and treated if on new impervious surfaces.  The applicant has received a permit from 

the Brunswick Sewer District for the floor drain discharge and the District also 

confirmed its capacity to handle sanitary plumbing flows.  The Sewer District stated 

that a permit will be required prior to connection of the sanitary discharge lines and, if 

needed, prior to discharge of excess water extracted during construction dewatering.                                                         

 

g) Additional Requirements:  The applicant’s proposal includes adequate plans for 

handling and disposing of coal ash encountered and any minor spills of petroleum 

products that could occur.  Although no other hazardous materials or evidence of 

petroleum contamination were identified by the applicant on the surface or in 

subsurface explorations at the site, the nature of the project site and adjacent 

properties is such that these materials may be encountered during construction of this 

project.  The applicant developed contingency measures to follow should contractors 

encounter  conditions or materials suggesting the presence of  hazardous materials 

and/or petroleum during excavation.  Contingency measures to be taken are described 

in the Coal Ash/Impacted Soil Management and Health and Safety Plans, submitted 

by the applicant as Exhibit 31in its pre-filed rebuttal testimony.  Upon discovering 

any such potential contaminants, the operator must immediately stop work in that 

area (except as may be necessary for worker safety) and the Bureau of Remediation 

and Waste Management’s (BRWM) Oil and Hazardous Materials Response Unit 

must be contacted.   

  

DEA and DLRR staff analysis is that the proposals and provisions in the elements above 

address the applicable Department standards for housekeeping provided that, before 

construction is initiated, a revised dewatering plan as described in Finding 2(A)(3)(e) and 

in Finding 3(A)(2), and all other housekeeping components  are consolidated by the 

applicant in a single location within the application plan set. 

 

Based on DLRR’s review of the erosion and sedimentation control plan, the inspection 

and maintenance plan and DEA’s review of the proposed housekeeping measures, the 

Department finds that the proposed project meets the Basic Standards contained in 

Chapter 500 § 4(A) provided that the applicant requires all its subcontractors to follow its 

spill prevention plan, revises the dewatering  plan as described above, and consolidates 



L-26119-NJ-C-N  7 of 22  

 

this and all other elements of the housekeeping plan into a single document to be 

incorporated into the application as a revision of the plan set referenced in Finding 1, and 

submits the information to the BLWQ for review and approval prior to the start of 

construction. 

 

B. General Standards:    

 

To meet the General Standards, a project’s stormwater management system must include 

general treatment measures that will mitigate for the increased frequency and duration of 

channel erosive flows due to runoff from smaller storms, provide for effective treatment 

of pollutants in stormwater, and mitigate potential temperature impacts.  The applicant 

proposes to achieve this by using Best Management Practices to control runoff from no 

less than 95 percent of the new impervious area and no less than 80 percent of the new 

developed area.  The applicant proposes to construct vegetated swales with a catch basin 

system and roof drip edge collection system discharging to a wet pond to provide 

treatment for developed areas on the site. 

 

The Coalition alleges that the applicant failed to provide project drainage plans 

containing all topographic features and land cover types in the application.  The applicant 

submitted evidence depicting existing and post-construction site topography and land 

cover types on plan sheets C-2.1, “Existing Conditions and Demolition Plan,” and sheets 

C-4.1, C-4.2 and C-4.3, “Grading Erosion Control Plan,” all of which are part of the plan 

set referenced in Finding 1.  This information adequately characterizes site topography to 

the extent required for the design of the stormwater management system.  

 

The Coalition also alleges that the soils data provided in the stormwater permit 

application is deficient and that the Soil Conservation Service soil maps used in the 

application do not take into account the disturbed nature of the soils and the history of the 

site.  To characterize the drainage properties of the soils on the site, the applicant 

reviewed data from over twenty soil borings taken across the site during the Phase I and 

limited Phase II Environmental Site Assessments, and the geotechnical exploration for 

the design of the building foundation.  The applicant assessed this information in 

conjunction with the soil maps to determine appropriate soil drainage class inputs for the 

stormwater program model used to size the stormwater management system.  DLRR staff 

reviewed the applicant’s data and the supporting calculations used to develop the 

stormwater management system design and concluded that the applicant designed the 

system based on appropriate assumptions of hydrologic soils groups “A” and “B” for the 

soils at the site.   

 

The stormwater management system proposed by the applicant was reviewed by, and 

revised in response to comments from, DLRR. In its final review, DLRR recommended 

that the applicant retain a design engineer to oversee the construction of the grassed 

swales, wet pond and roof drip edge collection system to insure that they are constructed 

in accordance with the details and notes specified on the approved plans.  

  



L-26119-NJ-C-N  8 of 22  

 

The Department finds that the proposed stormwater management system is designed in 

accordance with the General Standards contained in Chapter 500 § 4(B) provided the 

applicant retains a design engineer to oversee and document the construction of the 

stormwater management structures as described above.  Within thirty days of completion 

of the grassed swales, wet pond and roof drip edge collection system, the applicant must 

submit to the BLWQ for review a log of inspection reports detailing the items inspected, 

photographs taken, and the dates of each inspection. 

 

C.   Flooding Standard:   

 

Because the proposed project will result in over three acres of impervious area, the 

Flooding Standard applies. The applicant must demonstrate that the project would detain, 

retain, or result in the infiltration of stormwater from 24-hour storms of the 2-year, 10-

year, and 25-year frequencies such that the peak flows of stormwater from the site do not 

exceed the peak flows of stormwater prior to the construction of the project.  The 

applicant is proposing to utilize a stormwater management system based on estimates of 

pre- and post-development stormwater runoff flows obtained by using Hydrocad, a 

stormwater modeling software that utilizes the methodologies outlined in Technical 

Releases #55 and #20, U.S.D.A., Soil Conservation Service, and detains stormwater from 

24-hour storms of 2-, 10-, and 25-year frequency.  The applicant submitted calculations 

that indicate that the post-development peak flow from the site and the peak flow of the 

receiving waters will not be increased as a result of stormwater runoff from the 

development site. 

 

The Coalition raised concerns that the proposed project would exacerbate existing off-site 

flooding problems on nearby properties.  Members of the public with properties located 

southerly of the site testified about the possibility of increased flooding as a result of 

construction of the project.  One business owner on the north side of the site also testified 

about existing intermittent flooding on his property and expressed concerns that 

construction of the project would increase existing drainage problems. 

 

The proposed wet pond was sized by the applicant in accordance with the Department’s 

stormwater Best Management Practices manual to attenuate peak flows from the site to 

less than the pre-development flows.  Stormwater runoff entering the site from off-site 

locations to the north will be captured by regrading and maintaining an existing swale on 

the north side of the site.  Runoff will then be routed through the grassed swale and a 

catch basin collection system to the unnamed stream and to the Androscoggin River.   

 

The Department finds that existing berms, ditches and railroad tracks preclude significant 

amounts of stormwater runoff from flowing toward abutter properties to the south such 

that they would adversely affect abutting properties.  The applicant submitted credible 

information demonstrating that groundwater flows generally easterly through the site and 

toward the unnamed stream, and not to the north or to the south where the adjacent 

properties are located.  For these reasons, the project is not anticipated to unreasonably 

impact off-site properties to the north or south.  

 



L-26119-NJ-C-N  9 of 22  

 

DLRR staff’s analysis concluded that the proposed stormwater management system has 

been designed with adequate capacity and stability to receive and treat the project’s 

stormwater runoff, and includes provisions to adequately manage any runoff from off-site 

that flows through the project site.  DLRR commented that the proposed system is 

designed in accordance with the Flooding Standard contained in Chapter 500§4(E).  

 

Based on the system’s design, the physical characteristics of the project site, and DLRR’s 

analysis, the Department finds that the applicant has made adequate provision to ensure 

that the proposed project will meet the Flooding Standard contained in Chapter 500 § 4 

(E) for peak flow from the project site, and channel limits and runoff areas.   

 

3. ADDITIONAL CONTROLS FOR GROUNDWATER PROTECTION: 

 

Chapter 500 § 5(D) provides for additional controls to be imposed if necessary for certain 

projects to avoid impacts to water bodies from pollutants.  Due to the nature of the 

development, the historic uses of the site and the characteristics of the soils on site, 

additional controls for protection of groundwater are required as described below:  

 

A.  Roof Drip Edge Collection System:  The project design includes a foundation 

underdrain system with subsurface collection pipes designed to drain excess groundwater 

from the building’s foundation footings.  This foundation underdrain system is not a part 

of the stormwater management system.  Its purpose is to convey excess groundwater 

from the foundation footings of the completed layover building to a concrete drainage 

ring located easterly of the building, where it will be reinfiltrated back into the 

groundwater table.  Results of a geotechnical investigation submitted by the applicant 

indicate that groundwater is at a lower elevation in this part of the site than it is within the 

building footprint so that infiltration can be accommodated.  The applicant stated that it 

intends to register the system as a Class V injection well with the Department’s 

Underground Injection Control program.   

As designed, the foundation drainage system will be located vertically below the roof 

drip edge collection system that is intended to collect and convey stormwater from the 

roof of the building to the wet pond for treatment.  The Coalition argues that, because the 

proposed project design includes a permeable fabric separating the roof drip edge and 

foundation drain collection systems, roof runoff could bypass the upper roof drip edge 

collection pipe.  This runoff could be introduced to the groundwater by way of the 

underlying foundation drain system and the drainage ring, through which potential 

contaminants from roof runoff could be infiltrated to the groundwater without receiving 

adequate quality treatment.  During the Department’s review, the applicant stated that it 

would not object to a permit condition requiring the substitution of an impervious 

material for the permeable fabric separating the two systemsto reduce the potential for 

direct infiltration of roof runoff into groundwater.   

 

DEA staff reviewed the project design and stated that, due to its location in permeable 

soils with a deep water table, unless the roof drip edge collection system is lined with an 

impermeable liner, some fraction of the stormwater entering the roof drip edge collection 



L-26119-NJ-C-N  10 of 22  

 

system could potentially bypass that system, enter the foundation drain collection system, 

and eventually flow to the drainage ring, where it would enter the groundwater.  

Infiltration is defined in Chapter 500 §3(L) as a process specifically used to meet all or 

part of the stormwater standards by actively directing all or part of the stormwater into 

the soil; incidental wetting of soil in ditches, detention basins or the equivalent is 

excluded.  However, because the unlined roof drip edge collection system could 

potentially include some element of infiltration, to ensure no discharge of contaminants 

to groundwater from the proposed systems, the Department conditions its findings with 

the requirement that the applicant must revise the roof drip edge collection system to 

include an impermeable liner.  

  

The Department does not anticipate that the drainage ring will adversely impact 

groundwater quality provided that the drip-edge collection system is equipped with an 

impervious liner as described above.   

DEA also commented that the drainage ring must be registered as a Class V injection 

well prior to operation and must meet all applicable requirements of the Department’s 

Rules to Control the Subsurface Discharge of Pollutants( Chapter 543) 06-096 CMR 543 

(as amended Oct. 3, 2006) and the Underground Injection Control Program.  The 

applicant has represented that it intends to register this structure as described above.   

 

The Department finds that the proposed stormwater management system will not 

discharge contaminants to groundwater; however, to provide an additional safeguard, the 

applicant must revise the project design to include an impermeable liner between the roof 

drip edge collection system and the foundation drain system.  Prior to construction, the 

applicant must submit the revised roof drip edge collection system design to the 

Department for review and approval.   

 

The Department further finds that the foundation drainage ring must be registered as a 

Class V injection well prior to operation of the drainage ring, and must meet all 

applicable requirements of Chapter 543, and the Underground Injection Control Program. 

 

B.   Dewatering:  As outlined in Finding 2(A)(3)(e), a dewatering plan for construction of 

certain project components was submitted with the application.  The plan includes the use 

of a well point dewatering system which would be used to lower the water table 

approximately two feet below the proposed excavation level.  The water would be 

pumped from discrete well point locations around the wet pond and deposited into a 

temporary sump area on site from where it would be re-infiltrated to the groundwater.  

Similar procedures would be used for dewatering as needed during construction of the 

building foundation.  Pumping extraction rates will be adjusted if necessary to prevent 

overflows at the sump area.  The plan includes alternatives for storage of extracted water 

in portable tanks from where it would be sent to the infiltration sump at a reduced rate if 

necessary.  Another alternative in the plan would be to discharge water to the Brunswick 

Sewer system with prior approval from the sewer district. 

  



L-26119-NJ-C-N  11 of 22  

 

Based on the Department’s experience with similar systems at other projects, DEA’s 

analysis agreed that the dewatering would not be extensive nor should it be necessary for 

it to continue for an extended period.  However, the dewatering will be conducted within 

and adjacent to industrialized areas.  Department records include the occurrence of 

several spills on properties adjacent to the site.  The spill records indicate that those 

known spills have been cleaned up to the satisfaction of Department response staff, and 

water quality data provided with the application do not indicate significant adverse 

impact on groundwater quality in the immediate area of the proposed project.  Monitoring 

wells, however, sample only a small area of the site.  To detect and allow action to 

address the potential for the dewatering drawing contaminated water from the site from 

unknown spills which may have affected water quality, and in response to concerns 

expressed by the Coalition and members of the public, the Department is imposing 

certain additional requirements described below as conditions of this approval      

 

DEA recommended that the applicant monitor the groundwater extracted during 

dewatering through the use of a lined, temporary collection basin for visual inspection for 

the presence of a visible sheen or other evidence of petroleum contamination.  DEA also 

recommended that, in addition to the visual inspection, a photometric ionization detector 

or equivalent analysis be performed at two-hour intervals on water samples from the 

basin.  Additionally, DEA recommended that the applicant be required to visually 

observe conditions in the stream at the easterly end of the site at two hour intervals to 

ensure that stream flow conditions are not unreasonably impacted by the dewatering 

process.   

During dewatering, the applicant must install a lined basin to receive discharge from the 

dewatering pumps, and this basin should be inspected at two-hour intervals for any 

evidence of sheens or other indications of petroleum contamination; time and results of 

these visual inspections should be recorded on log sheets to be provided to the 

Department.  This lined basin should discharge to the designated dewatering infiltration 

basin.  If a visible sheen or other evidence of petroleum contamination is observed, 

pumping should cease and BRWM response staff should be contacted immediately. 

 

In addition to visual inspection for a sheen or petroleum residue on the liner or other parts 

of the forebay or stilling basin, the applicant must perform a headspace analysis on water 

samples from the basin.  BRWM response staff follows a standard field procedure that 

includes collection of a sample in a sample bottle, closure of the bottle with foil or a 

similar cover, agitation of the sample bottle, and penetration of the cover with a 

photometric ionization detector probe or equivalent instrument to measure hydrocarbon 

concentration in the headspace.  Based on a recommendation from BRWM response 

staff, this test must be performed at least every two hours during dewatering, and 

detection of 25 parts per million (ppm) or greater of hydrocarbons in the headspace 

requires cessation of pumping and immediate notification of BRWM response staff in 

order to determine the need for further action, if any.  

 

The applicant must also visually observe the dewatering outfall for an extended period 

during the startup and early stages of pumping to guarantee that sufficient freeboard is 



L-26119-NJ-C-N  12 of 22  

 

maintained on both the lined basin and in the infiltration area; this should be confirmed 

during other visual observations of the lined basin during operations.  Pumping rates 

and/or sizes of these basins must be adjusted as necessary to maintain basin functions. 

During dewatering, the applicant must also visually observe conditions in the unnamed 

stream at the east end of the project site at two-hour intervals to ensure that stream flow 

conditions are not unreasonably impacted by the dewatering process.   

 

Prior to the start of construction, the applicant must submit a final dewatering plan to the 

BLWQ for review and approval, which incorporates the conditions of this approval.  The 

plan must include a standard operating procedure or similar document, together with any 

necessary plan sheets and details, describing the procedures for dewatering during 

construction and the conduct of the water sample collection, monitoring and analysis, and 

stream flow monitoring provisions for the unnamed stream on the site.  The plan must 

also include a maintenance log of visual inspections and sampling results and other 

details as outlined above as well as alternatives for disposal, such as a holding tank or 

discharge to the public sewer system, should contamination become an issue during the 

dewatering process.  

 

C.   VRAP:  As noted in Finding 1, because of the industrialized history of the site, the 

applicant developed a voluntary remedial action plan and submitted an application to the 

Department’s VRAP Program.  The proposed remedial actions and other 

recommendations for management of contaminated soils were conditionally approved in 

a letter to the applicant dated September 12, 2011 from Jean Firth, Brownfields 

Coordinator in the BRWM.  The applicant submitted a Coal Ash/Ash Impacted Soil 

Management Plan, dated October 2014, to the Department.  The October 2014 plan was 

designed to integrate the layover project construction plan with the requirements of the 

voluntary remedial action plan described above and was reviewed and found to be 

acceptable by BRWM staff.  The proposed project is subject to the findings, conclusions 

and conditions of the September 12, 2011 letter of approval from BRWM and the 

October 2014 soil management plan.  Copies of any soil test results or other materials 

submitted to the BRWM pursuant to the VRAP program must also be submitted to the 

BLWQ. 

 

Based on the proposed project design and the Department’s review, and with the 

additional requirements imposed in Finding 3 of this Department Order, the Department 

finds that the proposed project will not adversely affect groundwater quantity or quality 

provided that the applicant revises the roof drip edge collection system with an 

impermeable liner, revises the dewatering plan to include the inspection and sampling 

requirements set forth above, and the applicant submits copies of any soil test results or 

other materials submitted in connection with the VRAP program, all as described above.       

 

 

BASED on the above findings of fact, and subject to the conditions listed below, the Department 

makes the following conclusions pursuant to 38 M.R.S.A. § 420-D, and Chapters 500 and 502 of 

the Department’s Regulations: 

 



L-26119-NJ-C-N  13 of 22  

 

A. The applicant has made adequate provision to ensure that the proposed project will meet 

the Chapter 500 Basic Standards for:  (1) erosion and sediment control; (2) inspection and 

maintenance; (3) housekeeping; and (4) grading and construction activity provided that 

storm sewer grit and sediment materials removed from stormwater control structures is 

disposed of in compliance with the Maine Solid Waste Management Rules (06-096 CMR 

400 et seq., effective September 6, 1999); provided that the applicant submits a revised 

spill contingency plan and a final dewatering plan, and incorporates this information into 

a consolidated housekeeping plan; and provided that a third-party inspector is retained 

and a pre-construction meeting is held, all as described in Finding 2A. 

 

B. The applicant has made adequate provisions to ensure that the proposed project will meet 

the Chapter 500 General Standards provided that the applicant retains the services of a 

design engineer to oversee and document the construction of the stormwater management 

wet pond to insure that it is constructed in accordance with the details and notes specified 

on the approved plans as described in Finding 2B. 

 

C. The applicant has made adequate provision to ensure that the proposed project will meet 

the Flooding Standard contained in Chapter 500 § 4(E) for peak flow from the project 

site, and channel limits and runoff areas.   

 

D. The applicant has made adequate provision to protect groundwater provided that the roof 

drip edge collection system is revised to include an impermeable liner, the drainage ring 

is registered with the Department’s Underground Injection Control program, the 

dewatering plan is revised to include inspection and sampling requirements, and any soil 

samples taken related to the VRAP program are submitted to the BLWQ, all as described 

in Finding 3. 

 

THEREFORE, the Department APPROVES the application of NORTHERN NEW ENGLAND 

PASSENGER RAIL AUTHORITY to construct a stormwater management system as described 

above in Brunswick, Maine, SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS, and all 

applicable standards and regulations: 

 

1. The Standard Conditions of Approval, which are attached to this Order. 

 

2. In addition to any specific erosion control measures described in this Order, the applicant 

shall take all necessary actions to ensure that its activities or those of its agents do not 

result in noticeable erosion of soils or fugitive dust emissions on the site during the 

construction and operation of the project covered by this approval. 

 

3. Erosion control details shall be included on the final construction plans and the erosion 

control narrative shall be included in the project specifications to be provided to the 

construction contractor.    

 

4. Severability.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision, or part thereof, of this 

License shall not affect the remainder of the provision or any other provisions.  This 



L-26119-NJ-C-N  14 of 22  

 

License shall be construed and enforced in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable 

provision or part thereof had been omitted. 

 

5. The applicant or other responsible party shall, within three (3) months of the expiration of 

each five-year interval from the date of this Order, submit a report to the Department 

certifying that the items listed in Department Rules, Chapter 500, Appendix B(4) have 

been completed in accordance with the approved plans. 

 

6. The applicant shall retain the services of a third-party inspector in accordance with the 

Special Condition for Third-Party Inspection Program, which is attached to this Order.  

The applicant shall comply with the conditions contained in the Special Condition for 

Third-Party Inspection Program. 

 

7. Prior to the start of construction, the applicant shall conduct a pre-construction meeting.  

This meeting must be attended by the applicant’s representative, Department staff, the 

applicant’s design engineer, the contractor, the Town of Brunswick, and the third-party 

inspector. 

 

8. Prior to the start of construction, the applicant shall submit to the Department a revised 

housekeeping plan that consolidates  the elements of the housekeeping plan described 

above into a single document to be incorporated into a revised plan sheet and 

incorporated into the project plan set. 

 

9. Any spill prevention plans developed by site subcontractors shall be consistent with and 

no less stringent than the spill prevention plan submitted by the applicant.   Any 

petroleum spills shall be reported to the Department within two hours of their discovery.   

 

10. Prior to the start of construction, the applicant shall submit to the Department, for review 

and approval, a revised plan to include an impermeable liner between the roof drip edge 

collection system and the foundation drain system.  

 

11. The applicant shall register the drainage ring as a Class V injection well with the 

Department’s Underground Injection Control program prior to operation of the drainage 

ring, and must meet all applicable requirements of Department Rules, Chapter 543 and 

the Underground Injection Control Program. 

 

12. Prior to the start of construction, the applicant shall submit to the Department, for review 

and approval, a revised dewatering plan that includes provisions for monitoring for and 

disposal of contaminants and monitoring the unnamed stream for evidence of dewatering.  

The revised plan shall include measures to be taken if contaminated groundwater as 

determined by the criteria outlined in the applicant’s monitoring plan is encountered 

during dewatering,  

 

13. Storm sewer grit and sediment materials removed from stormwater control structures 

shall be disposed of in compliance with the Maine Solid Waste Management Rules (06-

096 CMR 400 et seq. effective September 6, 1999). 



L-26119-NJ-C-N  15 of 22  

 

14. The applicant shall retain a design engineer to oversee the construction of the stormwater 

management system in accordance with the details and notes specified on the approved 

plans.  Within thirty (30) days of completion of the entire stormwater management 

system, the applicant shall submit to the Department a log of inspection reports detailing 

the items inspected, photographs taken, and the dates of each inspection. 

 

15. The applicant shall submit to the Bureau of Land and Water Quality copies of all 

information submitted to the VRAP program related to soil disturbance associated with 

project construction at the site. 

 

 

THIS APPROVAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE OR SUBSTITUTE FOR ANY OTHER 

REQUIRED STATE, FEDERAL OR LOCAL APPROVALS NOR DOES IT VERIFY 

COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE SHORELAND ZONING ORDINANCES. 

 

DONE AND DATED IN AUGUSTA, MAINE, THIS ____ DAY OF    , 2015. 

 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

 

 

 

 

BY:        

 Patricia W. Aho, Commissioner 

 

PLEASE NOTE THE ATTACHED SHEET FOR GUIDANCE ON APPEAL PROCEDURES… 

 

WB/L26119CN/ATS#78298 

  



L-26119-NJ-C-N  16 of 22  

 

STORMWATER STANDARD CONDITIONS 
 

STRICT CONFORMANCE WITH THE STANDARD AND SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF THIS 

APPROVAL IS NECESSARY FOR THE PROJECT TO MEET THE STATUTORY CRITERIA 

FOR APPROVAL 

 

Standard conditions of approval.  Unless otherwise specifically stated in the approval, a department 

approval is subject to the following standard conditions pursuant to Chapter 500 Stormwater Management 

Law. 

 

(1) Approval of variations from plans. The granting of this approval is dependent upon and 

limited to the proposals and plans contained in the application and supporting documents 

submitted and affirmed to by the applicant. Any variation from these plans, proposals, and 

supporting documents must be reviewed and approved by the department prior to 

implementation. Any variation undertaken without approval of the department is in violation 

of 38 M.R.S.A. §420-D(8) and is subject to penalties under 38 M.R.S.A. §349. 

 

(2) Compliance with all terms and conditions of approval. The applicant shall submit all reports 

and information requested by the department demonstrating that the applicant has complied 

or will comply with all terms and conditions of this approval. All preconstruction terms and 

conditions must be met before construction begins. 

 

(3) Advertising. Advertising relating to matters included in this application may not refer to this 

approval unless it notes that the approval has been granted WITH CONDITIONS, and 

indicates where copies of those conditions may be obtained. 

 

(4) Transfer of project. Unless otherwise provided in this approval, the applicant may not sell, 

lease, assign, or otherwise transfer the project or any portion thereof without written approval 

by the department where the purpose or consequence of the transfer is to transfer any of the 

obligations of the developer as incorporated in this approval. Such approval may only be 

granted if the applicant or transferee demonstrates to the department that the transferee agrees 

to comply with conditions of this approval and the proposals and plans contained in the 

application and supporting documents submitted by the applicant. Approval of a transfer of 

the permit must be applied for no later than two weeks after any transfer of property subject 

to the license. 

 

(5) Time frame for approvals. If the construction or operation of the activity is not begun within 

four years, this approval shall lapse and the applicant shall reapply to the department for a 

new approval. The applicant may not begin construction or operation of the project until a 

new approval is granted. A reapplication for approval may include information submitted in 

the initial application by reference.  This approval, if construction is begun within the four-

year time frame, is valid for seven years.  If construction is not completed within the seven-

year time frame, the applicant must reapply for, and receive, approval prior to continuing 

construction. 

 

(6) Certification. Contracts must specify that "all work is to comply with the conditions of the 

Stormwater Permit." Work done by a contractor or subcontractor pursuant to this approval 

may not begin before the contractor and any subcontractors have been shown a copy of this 

approval with the conditions by the developer, and the owner and each contractor and 

subcontractor has certified, on a form provided by the department, that the approval and 

conditions have been received and read, and that the work will be carried out in accordance 



L-26119-NJ-C-N  17 of 22  

 

with the approval and conditions. Completed certification forms must be forwarded to the 

department. 

 

(7) Maintenance. The components of the stormwater management system must be adequately 

maintained to ensure that the system operates as designed, and as approved by the 

department. 

 

(8) Recertification requirement. Within three months of the expiration of each five-year interval 

from the date of issuance of the permit, the permittee shall certify the following to the 

department. 

 

(a) All areas of the project site have been inspected for areas of erosion, and appropriate 

steps have been taken to permanently stabilize these areas. 

 

(b) All aspects of the stormwater control system have been inspected for damage, wear, and 

malfunction, and appropriate steps have been taken to repair or replace the facilities. 

 

(c) The erosion and stormwater maintenance plan for the site is being implemented as 

written, or modifications to the plan have been submitted to and approved by the 

department, and the maintenance log is being maintained. 

 

(9) Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision, or part thereof, of this 

permit shall not affect the remainder of the provision or any other provisions. This permit 

shall be construed and enforced in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision or 

part thereof had been omitted. 

 

November 16, 2005 (revised December 27, 2011) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



L-26119-NJ-C-N  18 of 22  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Special Condition 

 for  

Third Party Inspection Program 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DEPLW078-B2001 November 2008 

  



L-26119-NJ-C-N  19 of 22  

 

THIRD-PARTY INSPECTION PROGRAM 
 

 

1.0 THE PURPOSE OF THE THIRD-PARTY INSPECTION 

 

As a condition of this permit, the Maine Department of Environmental Protection (MDEP) requires the permit 

applicant to retain the services of a third-party inspector to monitor compliance with MDEP permit conditions 

during construction.  The objectives of this condition are as follows: 

 

1) to ensure that all construction and stabilization activities comply with the permit conditions and the MDEP-

approved drawings and specifications, 

 

2) to ensure that field decisions regarding erosion control implementation, stormwater system installation, and 

natural resource protection are based on sound engineering and environmental considerations, and 

 

3) to ensure communication between the contractor and MDEP regarding any changes to the development's 

erosion control plan, stormwater management plan, or final stabilization plan. 

 

This document establishes the inspection program and outlines the responsibilities of the permit applicant, the 

MDEP, and the inspector. 

 

2.0 SELECTING THE INSPECTOR 

 

At least 30 days prior to starting any construction activity on the site, the applicant will submit the names of at 

least two inspector candidates to the MDEP.  Each candidate must meet the minimum qualifications listed under 

section 3.0.  The candidates may not be employees, partners, or contracted consultants involved with the 

permitting of the project or otherwise employed by the same company or agency except that the MDEP may 

accept subcontractors who worked for the project's primary consultant on some aspect of the project such as, but 

not limited to, completing wetland delineations, identifying significant wildlife habitats, or conducting 

geotechnical investigations, but who were not directly employed by the applicant, as Third Party inspectors on a 

case by case basis.  The MDEP will have 15 days from receiving the names to select one of the candidates as the 

inspector or to reject both candidates. If the MDEP rejects both candidates, then the MDEP shall state the 

particular reasons for the rejections.  In this case, the applicant may either dispute the rejection to the Director of 

the Bureau of Land and Water Quality or start the selection process over by nominating two, new candidates. 

 

3.0 THE INSPECTOR'S QUALIFICATIONS 

 

Each inspector candidate nominated by the applicant shall have the following minimum qualifications: 

 

1) a degree in an environmental science or civil engineering, or other demonstrated expertise, 

 

2) a practical knowledge of erosion control practices and stormwater hydrology, 

 

      3) experience in management or supervision on large construction projects, 

 

4) the ability to understand and articulate permit conditions to contractors concerning erosion control or 

stormwater management, 

 

5) the ability to clearly document activities being inspected, 

 

6) appropriate facilities and, if necessary, support staff to carry out the duties and responsibilities set forth in 

section 6.0 in a timely manner, and 

 

7) no ownership or financial interest in the development other than that created by being retained as the third-

party inspector. 



L-26119-NJ-C-N  20 of 22  

 

 

4.0 INITIATING THE INSPECTOR'S SERVICES 

 

The applicant will not formally and finally engage for service any inspector under this permit condition prior to 

MDEP approval or waiver by omission under section 2.0.  No clearing, grubbing, grading, filling, stockpiling, or 

other construction activity will take place on the development site until the applicant retains the MDEP-approved 

inspector for service. 

 

5.0 TERMINATING THE INSPECTOR'S SERVICES 

 

The applicant will not terminate the services of the MDEP-approved inspector at any time between commencing 

construction and completing final site stabilization without first getting written approval to do so from the 

MDEP. 

 

6.0 THE INSPECTOR'S DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

The inspector's work shall consist of the duties and responsibilities outlined below. 

 

1) Prior to construction, the inspector will become thoroughly familiar with the terms and conditions of the state-

issued site permit, natural resources protection permit, or both. 

 

2) Prior to construction, the inspector will become thoroughly familiar with the proposed construction schedule, 

including the timing for installing and removing erosion controls, the timing for constructing and stabilizing 

any basins or ponds, and the deadlines for completing stabilization of disturbed soils. 

 

3) Prior to construction, the inspector will become thoroughly familiar with the project plans and specifications, 

including those for building detention basins, those for installing the erosion control measures to be used on 

the site, and those for temporarily or permanently stabilizing disturbed soils in a timely manner. 

 

4) During construction, the inspector will monitor the contractor's installation and maintenance of the erosion 

control measures called for in the state permit(s) and any additional measures the inspector believes are 

necessary to prevent sediment discharge to off-site properties or natural resources.  This direction will be 

based on the approved erosion control plan, field conditions at the time of construction, and the natural 

resources potentially impacted by construction activities. 

 

5) During construction, the inspector will monitor the contractor's construction of the stormwater system, 

including the construction and stabilization of ditches, culverts, detention basins, water quality treatment 

measures, and storm sewers. 

 

6) During construction, the inspector will monitor the contractor's installation of any stream or wetland 

crossings. 

 

7) During construction, the inspector will monitor the contractor's final stabilization of the project site. 

 

8) During construction, the inspector will keep logs recording any rain storms at the site, the contractor's 

activities on the site, discussions with the contractor(s), and possible violations of the permit conditions. 

 

9) During construction, the inspector will inspect the project site at least once a week and before and after any 

significant rain event. The inspector will photograph all protected natural resources both before and after 

construction and will photograph all areas under construction.  All photographs will be identified with, at a 

minimum the date the photo was taken, the location and the name of the individual taking the photograph. 

Note: the frequency of these inspections as contained in this condition may be varied to best address 

particular project needs.  

 

10) During construction, the inspector will prepare and submit weekly inspection reports to the MDEP.  

 



L-26119-NJ-C-N  21 of 22  

 

11) During construction, the inspector will notify the designated person at the MDEP immediately of any 

sediment-laden discharges to a protected natural resource or other significant issues such as the improper 

construction of a stormwater control structure or the use of construction plans not approved by the MDEP.  

 

7.0 INSPECTION REPORTS 

 

The inspector will submit weekly written reports, including photographs of areas that are under construction, on 

a form provided by the Department to the designated person at the MDEP.  Each report will be due at the MDEP 

by the Friday following the inspection week (Monday through Sunday). 

 

The weekly report will summarize construction activities and events on the site for the previous week as outlined 

below. 

 

1) The report will state the name of the development, its permit number, and the start and end dates for the 

inspection week (Monday through Sunday). 

 

2) The report will state the date(s) and time(s) when the inspector was on the site making inspections. 

 

3) The report will state the date(s) and approximate duration(s) of any rainfall events on the site for the week. 

 

4) The report will identify and describe any erosion problems that resulted in sediment leaving the property or 

sediment being discharged into a wetland, brook, stream, river, lake, or public storm sewer system.  The 

report will describe the contractor's actions to repair any damage to other properties or natural resources, 

actions to eliminate the erosion source, and actions to prevent future sediment discharges from the area. 

 

5) The report will list the buildings, roads, parking lots, detention basins, stream crossings or other features open 

to construction for the week, including those features or areas actively worked and those left unworked 

(dormant). 

 

6) For each area open to construction, the report will list the date of initial soil disturbance for the area. 

 

7) For each area open to construction, the report will note which areas were actively worked that week and 

which were left dormant for the week.  For those areas actively worked, the report will briefly state the work 

performed in the area that week and the progress toward final stabilization of the area  -- e.g. "grubbing in 

progress", " grubbing complete", "rough grading in progress", "rough grading complete", "finish grading in 

progress", "finish grading complete", "permanent seeding completed", "area fully stable and temporary 

erosion controls removed", etc. 

 

8) For each area open to construction, the report will list the erosion and sedimentation control measures 

installed, maintained, or removed during the week. 

 

9) For each erosion control measure in-place, the report will note the condition of the measure and any 

maintenance performed to bring it to standard. 



L-26119-NJ-C-N  22 of 22  

 

Third Party Inspection Form 

This report is prepared by a Third Party Inspector to meet the requirements of the Third 

Party Inspector Condition attached as a Special Condition to the Department Order that 

was issued for the project identified below.  The information in this report/form is not 

intended to serve as a determination of whether the project is in compliance with the 

Department permit or other applicable Department laws and rules.  Only Department staff 

may make that determination. 

 

TO: PM, Maine DEP (@maine.gov) FROM:  

PROJECT NAME/ LOCATION:  DEP #:  

DATE OF INSPECTION:  DATE OF REPORT:   

WEATHER:  CONDITIONS:   

 

SITE CHARACTERISTICS: 

# ACRES OPEN:  # ACRES ACTIVE:  # ACRES INACTIVE:  

LOCATION OF OPEN LAND: LOCATION OF ACTIVE LAND: LOCATION OF INACTIVE LAND: 

   

OPEN SINCE:  OPEN SINCE: OPEN SINCE: 

   

 

PROGRESS OF WORK: 

INSPECTION OF: Satisfactory 
Minor Deviation 

(corrective action required)  
Unsatisfactory 

(include photos) 

STORMWATER CONTROL 

(VEGETATIVE & STRUCTURAL BMP’S) 
   

EROSION & SEDIMENTATION CONTROL 
(TEMPORARY & PERMANENT BMP’S) 

   

OTHER:  
(PERMIT CONDITIONS, ENGINEERING DESIGN, ETC.) 
 

   

 

COMMENTS/CORRECTIVE ACTIONS TAKEN (attach additional sheets as necessary):  

 

 

 

Photos (must be labeled with date, photographer and location): 
 

Cc:    

Original and all copies were sent by email only. 



 

 

 

DEP INFORMATION SHEET 
Appealing a Department Licensing Decision 

 

 Dated: March 2012 Contact: (207) 287-2811  
 

 

SUMMARY 

There are two methods available to an aggrieved person seeking to appeal a licensing decision made by the 

Department of Environmental Protection’s (“DEP”) Commissioner: (1) in an administrative process before the 

Board of Environmental Protection (“Board”); or (2) in a judicial process before Maine’s Superior Court.  An 

aggrieved person seeking review of a licensing decision over which the Board had original jurisdiction may seek 

judicial review in Maine’s Superior Court. 

A judicial appeal of final action by the Commissioner or the Board regarding an application for an expedited 

wind energy development (35-A M.R.S.A. § 3451(4)) or a general permit for an offshore wind energy 

demonstration project (38 M.R.S.A. § 480-HH(1)) or a general permit for a tidal energy demonstration project 

(38 M.R.S.A. § 636-A) must be taken to the Supreme Judicial Court sitting as the Law Court.  

This INFORMATION SHEET, in conjunction with a review of the statutory and regulatory provisions referred 

to herein, can help a person to understand his or her rights and obligations in filing an administrative or judicial 

appeal.   

 

I. ADMINISTRATIVE APPEALS TO THE BOARD 

 

LEGAL REFERENCES 

The laws concerning the DEP’s Organization and Powers, 38 M.R.S.A. §§ 341-D(4) & 346, the Maine 

Administrative Procedure Act, 5 M.R.S.A. § 11001, and the DEP’s Rules Concerning the Processing of 

Applications and Other Administrative Matters (“Chapter 2”), 06-096 CMR 2 (April 1, 2003). 

 

HOW LONG YOU HAVE TO SUBMIT AN APPEAL TO THE BOARD 

The Board must receive a written appeal within 30 days of the date on which the Commissioner's decision 

was filed with the Board.  Appeals filed after 30 calendar days of the date on which the Commissioner's 

decision was filed with the Board will be rejected. 

 

HOW TO SUBMIT AN APPEAL TO THE BOARD  

Signed original appeal documents must be sent to: Chair, Board of Environmental Protection, c/o 

Department of Environmental Protection, 17 State House Station, Augusta, ME  04333-0017; faxes are 

acceptable for purposes of meeting the deadline when followed by the Board’s receipt of mailed original 

documents within five (5) working days.  Receipt on a particular day must be by 5:00 PM at DEP’s offices 

in Augusta; materials received after 5:00 PM are not considered received until the following day.  The 

person appealing a licensing decision must also send the DEP’s Commissioner a copy of the appeal 

documents and if the person appealing is not the applicant in the license proceeding at issue the applicant 

must also be sent a copy of the appeal documents.  All of the information listed in the next section must be 

submitted at the time the appeal is filed.  Only the extraordinary circumstances described at the end of that 

section will justify evidence not in the DEP’s record at the time of decision being added to the record for 

consideration by the Board as part of an appeal. 



Appealing a Commissioner’s Licensing Decision 
March 2012  
Page 2 of 3 

 

 OCF/90-1/r/95/r98/r99/r00/r04/r12 

WHAT YOUR APPEAL PAPERWORK MUST CONTAIN 

Appeal materials must contain the following information at the time submitted: 

1. Aggrieved Status.  The appeal must explain how the person filing the appeal has standing to maintain an 

appeal.  This requires an explanation of how the person filing the appeal may suffer a particularized 

injury as a result of the Commissioner’s decision.  

2. The findings, conclusions or conditions objected to or believed to be in error.  Specific references and 

facts regarding the appellant’s issues with the decision must be provided in the notice of appeal. 

3. The basis of the objections or challenge.  If possible, specific regulations, statutes or other facts should 

be referenced.  This may include citing omissions of relevant requirements, and errors believed to have 

been made in interpretations, conclusions, and relevant requirements. 

4. The remedy sought.  This can range from reversal of the Commissioner's decision on the license or 

permit to changes in specific permit conditions. 

5. All the matters to be contested.  The Board will limit its consideration to those arguments specifically 

raised in the written notice of appeal. 

6. Request for hearing.  The Board will hear presentations on appeals at its regularly scheduled meetings, 

unless a public hearing on the appeal is requested and granted.  A request for public hearing on an 

appeal must be filed as part of the notice of appeal. 

7. New or additional evidence to be offered.  The Board may allow new or additional evidence, referred to 

as supplemental evidence, to be considered by the Board in an appeal only when the evidence is relevant 

and material and that the person seeking to add information to the record can show due diligence in 

bringing the evidence to the DEP’s attention at the earliest possible time in the licensing process or that 

the evidence itself is newly discovered and could not have been presented earlier in the process.  

Specific requirements for additional evidence are found in Chapter 2.  

 

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS IN APPEALING A DECISION TO THE BOARD 

1. Be familiar with all relevant material in the DEP record.  A license application file is public 

information, subject to any applicable statutory exceptions, made easily accessible by DEP.  Upon 

request, the DEP will make the material available during normal working hours, provide space to review 

the file, and provide opportunity for photocopying materials.  There is a charge for copies or copying 

services. 

2. Be familiar with the regulations and laws under which the application was processed, and the 

procedural rules governing your appeal.  DEP staff will provide this information on request and answer 

questions regarding applicable requirements. 

3. The filing of an appeal does not operate as a stay to any decision.  If a license has been granted and it 

has been appealed the license normally remains in effect pending the processing of the appeal.  A 

license holder may proceed with a project pending the outcome of an appeal but the license holder runs 

the risk of the decision being reversed or modified as a result of the appeal. 

 

WHAT TO EXPECT ONCE YOU FILE A TIMELY APPEAL WITH THE BOARD 

The Board will formally acknowledge receipt of an appeal, including the name of the DEP project manager 

assigned to the specific appeal.  The notice of appeal, any materials accepted by the Board Chair as 

supplementary evidence, and any materials submitted in response to the appeal will be sent to Board 

members with a recommendation from DEP staff.  Persons filing appeals and interested persons are notified 

in advance of the date set for Board consideration of an appeal or request for public hearing.  With or 

without holding a public hearing, the Board may affirm, amend, or reverse a Commissioner decision or 

remand the matter to the Commissioner for further proceedings.  The Board will notify the appellant, a 

license holder, and interested persons of its decision.  



Appealing a Commissioner’s Licensing Decision 
March 2012  
Page 3 of 3 

 

 OCF/90-1/r/95/r98/r99/r00/r04/r12 

II. JUDICIAL APPEALS 

 

Maine law generally allows aggrieved persons to appeal final Commissioner or Board licensing decisions to 

Maine’s Superior Court, see 38 M.R.S.A. § 346(1); 06-096 CMR 2; 5 M.R.S.A. § 11001; & M.R. Civ. P 

80C.  A party’s appeal must be filed with the Superior Court within 30 days of receipt of notice of the 

Board’s or the Commissioner’s decision.  For any other person, an appeal must be filed within 40 days of 

the date the decision was rendered.  Failure to file a timely appeal will result in the Board’s or the 

Commissioner’s decision becoming final. 

An appeal to court of a license decision regarding an expedited wind energy development, a general permit 

for an offshore wind energy demonstration project, or a general permit for a tidal energy demonstration 

project may only be taken directly to the Maine Supreme Judicial Court.  See 38 M.R.S.A. § 346(4). 

Maine’s Administrative Procedure Act, DEP statutes governing a particular matter, and the Maine Rules of 

Civil Procedure must be consulted for the substantive and procedural details applicable to judicial appeals.  

 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

If you have questions or need additional information on the appeal process, for administrative appeals contact 

the Board’s Executive Analyst at (207) 287-2452 or for judicial appeals contact the court clerk’s office in which 

your appeal will be filed.   

 

Note: The DEP provides this INFORMATION SHEET for general guidance only; it is not intended for use 

as a legal reference.  Maine law governs an appellant’s rights. 

 







 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



 

Town of Brunswick, Maine 
INCORPORATED 1739 

ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
85 UNION STREET 

BRUNSWICK, MAINE 04011-2418 

 
 

 
TELEPHONE      207-721-0292 

FAX                      207-725-6663 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:   Town Council Members 

FROM: Linda Smith, Business Development Manager 

SUBJECT: CGI Communications Videos Project Update 

DATE: June 8, 2015 

The Town of Brunswick and CGI Communications have entered in to an Agreement (effective 
February 1, 2015) to create five (5) one minute videos for Brunswick. These videos are provided 
through a cost free Community Showcase Video Program that CGI Communications operates in 
partnership with the National League of Cities (NLC) and the U.S. Conference of Mayors.  As 
part of their partnership with the NLC, they offer a Savings and Solutions Program to towns and 
cities throughout the USA. The video topics Brunswick has chosen are:  

• a “Welcome” video, which provides a general welcome to and awareness of Brunswick’s 
demographics and amenities; 

• a “Community Organizations” video, which will provide a profile of several of our non-
profits such as Habitat for Humanity, People Plus, Five Rivers Arts Alliance, and many 
more; 

• a “Business Opportunities” video, which will feature Brunswick Landing, Downtown 
including the Pleasant Street corridor, and the Cooks Corner area; 

• a “Quality of Life” video, which will profile Maine Street Station, Downtown, Brunswick 
Landing, Bowdoin College, the elementary / middle & high schools, our community 
health care options through Parkview & Midcoast Health Services as well as special 
events like the Holiday Tree Lighting, Early Bird - Bed Races, Race the Runways and so 
forth; and, 

• a “Recreation & Arts” video which will feature our outdoor opportunities like winter 
skating / summer concerts on the Mall, our Androscoggin bike trail, locations such as 
Coffin Pond and other bike / trail / water opportunities as well as art events from Five 
Rivers, Brunswick Art Festival, our sculptures and murals, and others. 

CGI Communications provides a project liaison, script writer and other production staff and does 
all of the assembling, editing, etc. The Town’s primary work is to identify the great images of 
Brunswick that we want to represent us, to provide the data that CGI needs, to provide any 
video clips and/or still photos to complement the footage CGI will take, to come up with the 
people we want to speak in the videos on our behalf, and to assist in editing the videos to create 
a finished product that best represents our community. 

www.brunswickme.org 
 



Currently, we have signed off on the scripts for the five (5) one minute videos and have a CGI 
videographer scheduled to come to Brunswick on Monday and Tuesday, July 6th and 7th. I have 
been working with the Brunswick Downtown Association, the Midcoast Regional 
Redevelopment Authority, the Southern Midcoast Maine Chamber and our own municipal 
resources such as TV – 3, Marine Resources and Recreation to organize the video shoot 
schedule.  

As a part of this project, CGI Communications has also been reaching out to our business 
community to offer to develop videos that highlight their company and its products. These 
business videos are developed for a fee. Businesses who may want to be involved in the 
program are companies that a new or future resident would want to connect with; for example, 
doctors, dentists, realtors, home builders, residential contractors, attorneys, veterinarians, 
locally owned restaurants, manufacturers, private schools, auto repair, orthodontists, 
pediatricians, etc. The Town posted a Letter of Introduction, so our businesses were aware of 
the project and the working relationship with CGI Communications. To date, twenty-five (25) 
businesses have agreed to work with CGI Communications on this project. It is likely that a total 
of forty (40) businesses will sign up by the end of the project. 

We hope to launch the Town videos in late August or early September 2015. I’m available at the 
June 15, 2015 Town Council meeting to answer any questions you may have about the project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cc: John Eldridge, Town Manager 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - D 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 64 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 





























 
 

 
ITEM 65 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



A Solarize Program for Brunswick 

 

Introduction - Solarize programs are designed to help residents overcome the financial 

and logistical barriers to installing solar power systems on their homes. They accomplish 

this by allowing pre-selected solar installation companies to offer group discounts. An 

aggressive outreach and education effort, coupled with a tight deadline for committing 

to the program, typically produces a substantial number of motivated potential 

customers. A second purpose of the program is to increase the visibility of rooftop solar 

in the community, with the result that even those companies not participating in the 

initial effort can benefit from higher demand for their services. Thus, a successful 

Solarize program can produce employment and other economic benefits to the wider 

community. 

Why rooftop solar? - The benefit of rooftop solar to homeowners is obvious – greatly 

reduced electric bills – but there are societal advantages as well. Most electricity is 

generated in large, centralized power plants, located many miles from the homes, 

stores, offices, and factories in which it is used. According to the Edison Electric 

Institute, an association of investor-owned public utilities, its members will spend more 

than $64 Billion dollars through 2016 on construction and maintenance of the 

transmission infrastructure required to move this electricity from each Point A to its 

many Points B. In addition, the U.S. Energy Information Administration reports that 

about 7 percent of all electricity generated in these centralized plants is lost during 

transmission. Both of these costs – those associated with infrastructure and those 

associated with the generation of electricity that never makes it to end users – are 

borne by the general public in the form of higher electric bills. Finally, although an 

increasing percentage of Maine’s electricity is generated using renewable, fossil fuels 

continue to account for roughly 40% of Maine’s electricity. The advantages of solar over 

fossil fuels with regard to greenhouse gas emissions and other forms of air pollution are 

well documented. 

Experience Elsewhere - The first Solarize program was launched in 2009 in a Portland, 

Oregon neighborhood. Within six months of starting their campaign, the program had 

signed up more than 300 residents and installed solar on 130 homes. These installations 

added 350 kilowatts of new photovoltaic capacity and created 18 professional-wage 

jobs for site assessors, engineers, project managers, journeyman electricians, and 

roofers. As a result of this success, other neighborhoods in the city adopted similar 

programs which produced 400 additional installations in 2010. Since then, the concept 



has spread across the country, with a new program in Freeport, ME, as well as several 

others in Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Connecticut and Vermont. Approximately 40 

contracts for rooftop solar in Freeport have been signed in the program’s first two 

months. In the Upper Valley region of New Hampshire and Vermont, 301 contracts were 

signed during the program’s first two rounds, with the Town of Hanover leading the way 

with 62. The programs in Massachusetts and Connecticut were coordinated at the state 

level, with participation by 50 to 60 towns in each state. Solarize Connecticut has 

resulted in the installation of over 2,000 rooftop systems, while in Massachusetts the 

figure is 2,400 systems. 

Solarize Brunswick - A Solarize program in Brunswick would involve a partnership 

between the Town, the Recycling & Sustainability (R&S) Committee, and one or more 

solar installation companies. The Town’s role would be to issue a Request for Proposals 

(RFP) to qualified companies, provide general oversight to program activities, and serve 

as a single point of contact for inquiries from interested citizens. Also, involvement by 

the Town would lend a sense of legitimacy to the program. The R&S Committee would 

perform outreach to promote the program. The Town and Committee would also 

appoint a committee to review bids received from the solar installation companies and 

select a winning bidder. The solar installation companies would respond to the RFP, 

offering a tiered pricing plan under which the costs for individual projects would drop as 

the number of residents participating increases. The winning bidder would be given 

contact information, primarily e-mail addresses, for interested residents and would 

conduct all follow-up activities with them. Companies can either bid on their own or 

form consortiums to bid collectively. 

The following steps would be involved in a “Solarize Brunswick” program: 

 The R&S Committee begins outreach activities to inform the public and gather e-

mails of interested residents and small businesses. 

 The Town issues a RFP to solar installation companies interested in offering 

competitive tiered pricing for a direct-ownership model for solar PV. 

 A partner installer is selected to participate in the program. 

 The partner installer takes the lead on outreach activities, initiates contact with 

interested residents to provide additional information and, if appropriate, 

schedules site assessments.  

 If the site assessment indicates that a solar installation is appropriate, the partner 

installer submits a bid to the resident. 

 The partner installer executes the contract with the resident to install the solar PV 

system. The Town is not involved in installation contracts. 



 

The following table summarizes the activities of various players. 

Program Activity Town staff Recycling and 
Sustainability 
Committee/Volunteers 

Partner Installer  

Start up Review/approve 
RFP 
 
 

Write RFP. 
 
Recruit volunteers for 
outreach and bid 
evaluation activities. 
 
Solicit e-mail addresses 
of potential customers.  
 

 

Installer Selection Distribute RFP. 
 
Review/approve 
evaluation panel 
recommendation. 

Evaluate proposals and 
recommend winner or 
finalists to be 
interviewed. 
 
Interview finalists and 
recommend winner. 

Respond to RFP. 

Outreach Oversee outreach 
activities. 
 
Issue list of 
known financing 
options. 
 

Develop website. 
 
Create and distribute 
informational material 
on the program. 
 
Research and prepare 
list of known financing 
options 

Include program 
information on company 
website. Link to Town 
website. 
 
Create and distribute 
informational material on 
the program. 
 

Enrollment  Compile database of 
enrollees. 

 

Site 
Assessments/Installations 

Perform/oversee 
permitting, 
inspection, 
interconnection. 

  Conduct site 
assessments. 
 
Install systems 

Program Evaluation Prepare program 
evaluation with 
input from BRSC, 
citizens, and 
partner installers. 

Solicit information 
from citizens and 
installer concerning 
program strengths and 
weaknesses. 

Provide information on 
program strengths and 
weaknesses. 

 

 



 
 

 
ITEM 66 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 

Town of Brunswick, Maine 
INCORPORATED 1739 

ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
85 UNION STREET 

BRUNSWICK, MAINE 04011-2418 

 
 

TELEPHONE      207-721-0292 

FAX                      207-725-6663 

 

www.brunswickme.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:   Town Council Members 

FROM: Linda Smith, Business Development Manager 

SUBJECT: Request to Set Public Hearing for MicroEnterprise Assistance Program Contract 
Amendment 

DATE: June 10, 2015 

The Maine Department of Economic and Community Development (DECD) provides for 
individual municipalities to apply for a MicroEnterpise Assistance Program grant of up to 
$150,000 maximum funding in any program year. In March 2015, DECD approved a contract 
awarding the Town of Brunswick $50,000 on behalf of its business applicant, Blue Dog Day 
Care. The Town can apply on behalf of other Brunswick microbusinesses for an additional 
$100,000 as a contract amendment to this original contract award. Two businesses, Fair Winds, 
Inc. and Anew Studio, have been working with DECD and the Town to apply for MicroEnterprise 
Assistance Program funds. [NOTE: The funds DECD used for Blue Dog and will likely use for 
Fair Winds, Inc. and Anew Studio are 2014 Program Funds, which means that the Town can still 
access the program through its 2015 program funds and via a new contract, if there are future 
new, interested and eligible microbusinesses.] 

Established in 2012, Fair Winds provides lab analyses including ongoing regulatory 
paralytic shellfish poisoning (PSP) testing of shellfish, marine environmental consulting and 
monitoring projects for businesses and municipalities. Fair Winds is moving from a home based 
business to a new location at 68 Thomas Point Road. The new building will provide professional 
office space as well as laboratory space and is convenient to the company’s primary customers 
from Harpswell, Bath, West Bath and Brunswick. The building is zoned commercial, but needs 
extensive upgrades. The business has a good track record, but the growth to a professional 
location and the need to hire two lab techs to provide services in response to new contract 
opportunities has capped the company’s ability to find financing. CEI has committed to financing 
the building (at $149,000). The owner, Darcie Couture, has committed to $40,000 in personal 
equity for working capital and initial building improvements. However, a gap remains of $50,000 
for completing the facility upgrades. The facilities upgrades are projected to cost $90,000 and 
the request for $50,000 to the MicroEnterprise Assistance Program addresses a part of this gap. 

Established in 2010, Anew Studio provides personal beautification services to families, 
working professionals and retires in the midcoast area. New clients comprise 20% of the 
business sales with 80% of sales coming from satisfied return customers. Since its start five 



years ago, Anew Studio has more than tripled its leased space presence at 14 Middle Street 
and increased its independent subcontractors from one to six, including four licensed 
cosmetologists, one certified massage therapist, and one licensed professional social worker. 
To stay competitive, Anew Studio needs to upgrade its interior studio space, improve exterior 
access, and upgrade and enhance its website presence and visibility. The landlord has agreed 
to make exterior improvements including paving, fencing and landscaping. The owner is 
requesting funds from the MicroEnterprise Assistance grant to take on two initiatives: to make 
interior improvements, which include energy efficiencies, facility upgrades and general 
leasehold improvements for floors, walls and systems; and, to invest in new technology 
systems, including computer hardware and web-site improvements. The total project cost is 
$30,000 with $24,000 requested from the MicroEnterprise Assistance Program. 

Both business owners are eligible directly under the criteria of Low Moderate Income (LMI) 
households; therefore, DECD is not requiring a job creation target for either of the project 
requests. However, Fair Winds, Inc. anticipates hiring two new lab tech level positions once the 
new building is rehabilitated. 

DECD recommended that the Town hold one Public Hearing and submit one contract 
amendment request (for a total of $74,000) for both applicants. Based on the information 
available from the businesses, the contract amendment application can be ready for a Public 
Hearing on July 6, 2015. As with previous CDBG requests, the Public Hearing notice will be 
posted in the Times Record ten days prior to the Town Council meeting when the Public 
Hearing is held and the public will be able to review the contract amendment application at that 
time. I would ask that the Town Council set a Public Hearing on July 6, 2015 to review the 
MicroEnterprise contract amendment grant application, which is to assist Anew Studio and Fair 
Winds, Inc. with funds to undertake building or leasehold improvements and technical system 
enhancements. I will be available at the June 15, 2015 Town Council meeting to answer any 
questions that you may have about the projects. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cc: John Eldridge, Town Manager  



 
 

 
ITEM 67 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



	
	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 June	11,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Cumberland	Farms	Property	
	
	
	
Subject	to	Town	Council	approval,	we	have	negotiated	the	purchase	of	the	Cumberland	Farms	
property	located	at	the	corner	of	Pleasant	and	Mill	Streets.		The	Town’s	interest	in	the	property	is	
primarily	to	provide	additional	right‐of‐way	for	potential	traffic	improvements	at	the	intersection.		
The	intersection	has	long	been	identified	as	one	requiring	improvement,	and	a	number	of	concept	
plans	have	been	drafted.		While	neither	the	Town	nor	Maine	Department	of	Transportation	(MDOT)	
has	any	current	plans	to	undertake	improvements	to	the	intersection,	most	of	the	concept	plans	
assume	additional	right‐of‐way	width	would	be	required.		Further,	conversations	with	MDOT	indicate	
that	a	proposed	project,	with	MDOT	participation,	would	be	more	favorably	received	if	additional	
right‐of‐way	had	already	been	acquired.	
	
The	property	had	been	listed	for	sale	at	$350,000.		The	Town	has	offered	to	purchase,	and	
Cumberland	Farms	has	agreed	to	sell,	the	property	at	$250,000.		We	are	proposing	to	fund	the	
property	acquisition,	and	related	costs,	from	the	balance	of	funds	in	the	Industrial	Park	Fund.		That	
fund	has	a	balance	of	$279,525.		While	the	fund	was	originally	intended	to	provide	resources	for	the	
development	of	a	new	industrial	park,	the	Town	no	longer	intends	to	use	the	funds	for	that	purpose.		
Over	the	past	few	years,	money	has	been	drawn	from	the	fund	for	other	purposes.			
	
Attached	is	a	resolution	that	would	authorize	purchasing	the	property,	as	well	as	razing	the	building	
that	housed	the	convenience	store.		The	resolution	would	also	authorize	additional	expenditures	to	
grade	and	seed	the	property.		The	property	would	be	converted	to	and	retained	as	green	space	until	a	
project	could	be	developed	to	improve	the	intersection.		The	parcel	abuts	property	the	Town	
currently	is	using	as	a	canoe	portage	and	park.		Should	a	transportation	project	not	materialize,	the	
Town	could	either	sell	the	property	or	retain	it	as	green	space.	
	
Should	the	Town	Council	adopt	the	funding	resolution,	the	Town	would	move	forward	with	finalizing	
a	purchase	and	sales	agreement.		Such	an	agreement	would	be	written	to	allow	for	inspection	and	
testing	on	the	property.		Given	the	property’s	use	as	a	gas	station,	we	are	concerned	about	any	
environmental	issues	related	to	the	property.		We	have	been	told	that	there	does	not	appear	to	be	any	
significant	environmental	concerns,	but	the	Town	would	reserve	the	right	for	additional	analysis.	
	
In	addition	to	the	funding	resolution,	the	property	listing	is	also	attached.		The	Town	has	had	the	
property	appraised,	and	that	appraisal	supports	the	Town’s	$250,000	offer.	
	
	
Attachments	
	
	



 

Page 1 
 
O:\Finance\Capital Projects\Projects\Cumberland Farms Property\Cumberland Farms Acquisition Resolution 2015 Industrial Park 
Fund.docx 

A Resolution Authorizing a Transfer of the Balance of Funds From the Town’s Industrial Park 
Fund and the Appropriation and Expenditure of Those Funds for the Purpose of Acquiring Real 

Estate and Razing Building(s) Located at the Northwest Corner of Pleasant and Mill Streets 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) and other entities have discussed the desire to make 
traffic improvements to the intersection of Pleasant and Mill Streets (the “Intersection”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town has described the Intersection as a gateway and expressed a desire to improve the 
aesthetic quality of the Intersection; and  
 
WHEREAS, real estate, consisting of a building and land of approximately 0.73 acres, located on the 
northwest corner of the Intersection, and identified on the Town’s tax maps as Map U14 Lot 120 (a.k.a. 
88 Pleasant Street), is currently offered for sale at an asking price of $350,000 (the “Property”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Manager has communicated, to the listing broker, the Town’s interest in 
acquiring the property at a price of $250,000, subject to the approval of the Brunswick Town Council; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town has an Industrial Park Fund that has accumulated resources for the development 
of a future industrial park; and  
 
WHEREAS, the current balance of funds available in the Industrial Park Fund is $279,525; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Town does not have plans to develop a new industrial park; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Manager has recommended that the entire balance in Industrial Park Fund be 
utilized for the acquisition of the Property and related costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Manager has also recommended that the entire balance in the Industrial Park 
Fund be utilized for razing building(s) located on the property, and other related costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council concurs that the Property should be acquired, and that the acquisition, 
razing the building(s), and related costs should be funded with the entire balance of Funds in the 
Industrial Park Fund; 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 
 

Section 1. Appropriation and Expenditure Authorization. The Town transfers from its 
Industrial Park Fund the entire balance in that Fund (currently $279,525) and appropriates and authorizes 
the expenditure of the balance for the acquisition of the Property, razing building(s), and related costs.  
The Town Manager is further authorized to expend additional funds to cover costs related to the 
acquisition that the Manager determines to be incidental and customary to the acquisition of real estate. 

 
Section 2.  Authorization to Execute a Purchase and Sales Agreement.  The Town Manager is 

authorized to negotiate, execute, and deliver, in the name of and on behalf of the Town, such contracts, 
agreements, and other documents and certificates as the Town Manager may determine to be necessary or 
appropriate in connection with the acquisition of the Property.  The aforementioned items shall be in such 
form and contain such terms and conditions as may be approved by the Town Manager in consultation 



 

Page 2 
 
O:\Finance\Capital Projects\Projects\Cumberland Farms Property\Cumberland Farms Acquisition Resolution 2015 Industrial Park 
Fund.docx 

with the Town Attorney and Chair of the Town Council.  Such approval shall be conclusively evidenced 
by the Town Manager’s execution thereof, provided however, that the Town Manager may delegate the 
authority granted hereunder as the Town Manager deems appropriate. 

 
Section 3.  Authorization to Raze Buildings and Make Related Expenditures.  The Town 

Manager is authorized to negotiate, execute, and deliver, in the name of and on behalf of the Town, such 
contracts, agreements, and other documents and certificates as the Town Manager may determine to be 
necessary or appropriate in connection with razing building(s) on the Property; removing pavement and 
other items; and grading, loaming and seeding the Property. 
 

Section 4.  Project Costs Defined.  The term “cost” or “costs” as used herein and applied to the 
Property Acquisition, or any portion thereof, includes: 

 
a. the cost of real estate, land and buildings, 
b. the cost of razing buildings, removing pavement, and incidental items from the property, 
c. grading, covering, and seeding the property, 
d. the cost of attorney fees, real estate appraisals, taxes, and other fees and costs customarily 

associated with real estate transactions as approved by the Town Manager, 
e. any other costs identified in the acquisition of the Property deemed to be costs under 

generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) as determined by the Town’s 
Finance Director. 

 
Section 5. Other Actions Authorized.  Any actions taken to date by the Town Manager in 

connection with the acquisition of the Property, are hereby ratified, confirmed, and approved. 
 
 
 
 
Proposed to Town Council:  June 15, 2015 
Adopted by Town Council: 



MALONE COMMERCIAL BROKERS 
5 Moulton Street • Suite 3 
Portland, ME  04101 
 

207.772.2422 main 
www.malonecb.com 

JOHN DOYON, CCIM 
207.772.8300 direct 
207.358.7913 direct fax 
john@malonecb.com 

FOR SALE | RETAIL PROPERTY 

Former Cumberland Farms  
88 PLEASANT STREET, BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

Building Type: Single story concrete 
block 

Building Size: 3.300± SF 

Site Size: 0.73± acres 

Frontage: 100±’ on US Route 1 
100±’ on Mill Street 

Zone: Highway Commercial 1 

Most Recent 
Use: 

Cumberland Farms  
(Closed in 2013) 

Overview 

The former Cumberland Farms location is located at the inter-
section of Route One (Pleasant Street) and Mill Street.  Route 
One in either direction past the store is channeling traffic either 
north from Freeport and Portland or west returning from Bath 
and the Mid Coast.  It is one of the most heavily traveled inter-
sections in the Brunswick area and was chosen by Cumberland 
Farms based upon the strong traffic count.  Cumberland Farms 
remains committed to this immediate area having built a new 
prototype store just a short distance away.  The store closed 
near the beginning of 2013.   

 

The above aerial does not reflect the removal of the former 
store’s gasoline pumps.  Pumps and tanks have been removed 
from the site. 

SUBJECT 



 

This document has been prepared by Malone Commercial Brokers for advertising and general information only.  Malone Commercial Brokers makes no guarantees, represen-

tations or warranties of any kind, expressed or implied, regarding, but not limited to, warranties of content, accuracy, and reliability.  Any interested party should undertake 

their own inquiries as to the accuracy of the information.  Malone Commercial Brokers excludes unequivocally all informed or implied terms, conditions and warranties arising 

out of this document and excludes all liability for loss and damages there from.  All data is subject to change of price, error, omissions, other conditions or withdrawal without 

notice.  Malone Commercial Brokers is acting as the Seller’s/Lessor’s agent in the marketing of this property. 

JOHN DOYON, CCIM 
207.772.8300 direct 
207.358.7913 direct fax 
john@malonecb.com 

Contact Us 

5 Moulton Street • Suite 3 
Portland, ME  04101 
207.772.2422 main 
www.malonecb.com 

 Existing 3,300± SF building (former convenience & gas store) 

 0.73± acre site with 100±’ frontage on U.S. Route 1 and 100±’ front-
age on Mill Street 

 Located on major artery in Brunswick 

 Pumps and tanks have been removed from the site 

Features 

SUBJECT 



88 PLEASANT STREET, BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

Property Summary 

PROPERTY: Former Cumberland Farms CEILINGS: 10±’ 

OWNER: VSH Realty, Inc. LIGHTING: Fluorescent 

BUILDING SIZE: 3,300± SF HVAC & HOT WATER: Appears to be (2) roof-mounted 
units which are propane-fired for 
heat.  10± gallon electric hot 
water tank 

MOST RECENT USE: Convenience store ELECTRICITY: 200 amps, 208/120 volts,  
3-phase indicated 

SITE SIZE: 0.73± acre RESTROOMS: 2 

FRONTAGE: 100±’on U.S. Route 1 
100±’ on Mill Street 

UTILITIES: Municipal water and sewer 

ZONE: Highway Commercial 1 PARKING: 20± unlined spaces 

AGE: Approx. 25 years ASSESSOR MAP: Map U15, Lot 120 

CONSTRUCTION: Concrete block DEED REFERENCE: Cumberland County Registry of 
Deeds Book 3729, Page 147 

FOUNDATION: Slab ASSESSED VALUE: $ 167,000  Land 
$ 152,700  Building 
$ 319,700 

STORIES: 1 REAL ESTATE TAX- $ 8,941.59± 

ROOF TYPE: Flat  SALE PRICE: $ 350,000.00 

Please note that large corporations may not have a key person familiar with the current condition of the  
improvements.  The broker was not exposed to the store when systems were last operational; therefore, a 
buyer is responsible for conducting their due diligence to ascertain the property’s and systems’ conditions.  

DEED RESTRICTIONS 

The building will be sold with deed restrictions prohibiting a convenience store as well as the sale of gas and coffee.  
If purchasers are unsure if their concept may be allowed, they should submit it to the broker to obtain feedback from 
Cumberland Farms.  

MALONE COMMERCIAL BROKERS 
5 Moulton Street • Suite 3 
Portland, ME  04101 
 

207.772.2422 main 
www.malonecb.com 

JOHN DOYON, CCIM 
207.772.8300 direct 
207.358.7913 direct fax 
john@malonecb.com 



88 PLEASANT STREET, BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

Assessor Map  
SU

B
JE

C
T 



Site Plan 
88 PLEASANT STREET, BRUNSWICK, MAINE 



88 PLEASANT STREET, BRUNSWICK, MAINE 

Area Map & Traffic Counts 

Brunswick a town of over 20,000 people is located just 25 minutes beyond Portland and   is the gateway to the state’s beautiful 
mid-coast area which includes the three islands just south of the town (accessed by bridges) as well as other coastal towns  
including Bath, Wiscasset, Damariscotta, Boothbay Harbor, Camden, Rockland among others.   
 

The Town of Brunswick is the home to world renowned Bowdoin College ranked sixth among liberal arts colleges by U.S. News 
and World Report in 2010.  The college features an art museum, theater, concert hall, hockey rink and sports complex.  Bruns-
wick also hosts branches of Southern New Hampshire University and Southern Maine Community College. 
 

The town has been instrumental in re-developing the former Brunswick Naval Air Base into the current Town Landing, a premier 
technology business park with 3,300 acres of prime real estate, over 2 million square feet of commercial and industrial space, a 
world-class aviation complex and on-site educational institutions.   
 

Local major employers include Bath Iron Works, Bowdoin College, L. L. Bean, Mid Coast Hospital and Parkview Adventist  
Medical Center. 

MALONE COMMERCIAL BROKERS 
5 Moulton Street • Suite 3 
Portland, ME  04101 
 

207.772.2422 main 
www.malonecb.com 

JOHN DOYON, CCIM 
207.772.8300 direct 
207.358.7913 direct fax 
john@malonecb.com 

SUBJECT 

25,090 

22,840 

24,410 

21,770 

1 mile 

3 mile 

Traffic counts noted are AADT (Annual Average Daily Traffic) and are cumulative in both directions unless otherwise noted.  Source:  MaineDOT, Traffic Volume Counts, 
2012 Annual Report., Cumberland County. 

25,330 



1

John Eldridge

From: John Doyon <John@malonecb.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 11, 2015 2:27 PM
To: John Eldridge
Subject: Cumberland Farms Brunswick

John, 
 
Thank you for the update today.  Our position is that we have the essence of an agreement for the town to 
purchase and are waiting for the attorneys to work on some contract language before signing.  Therefore, we are 
treating this property as if it were under contract for the time being.  Naturally, we would expect to finalize our 
agreement this month. 
 
John Doyon, CCIM 
Partner 
Malone Commercial Brokers 
5 Moulton Street 
Portland, ME 04101 
john@malonecb.com  
207-772-8300 direct 
207-772-2422 office 
207-358-7913 fax 
 

MARKET FOCUS QUARTER 1 2015 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 68 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Rules of Order and Procedure for Brunswick Town Council 

As amended on February 1, 2010 9 

(7) Public Comments 
(8) Correspondence 
(9) Committee Reports 
(10) Manager’s Report 
(11) Hearings 
(12) Tabled Matters 
(13) New Business 

  (amended 2/9/2015.) 
 
28 a Town Council Action on Items 
 
  The following procedures are suggested: 
 

1. Sponsor or manager introduces the item 
  Any councilor may make a motion (optional) (Note 1) 
2. Sponsor or manager explains the item 
  Sponsor, manager, staff, or others (as designated by sponsor or manager) 
  provide additional explanation or information 
3. Town Council questions (no debate) 
4. Public input (optional) 
5. Additional questions from Town Council (no debate) 
6. Chair recites motion, if already made, or looks for motion (Note 1) 
7. Town Council debate 
8. Amendments to motion (optional) and debate 
9. Vote on motion (amended, if applicable) 
 
Note 1:  As a courtesy on motions, the Chair shall look first to the sponsor, then to the 

district councilor (if applicable), and then to the remaining councilors. 
 
The Chair, without objection, may modify these procedures as appropriate. 

 
 29. Procedure of Motions 
 
  When a question is before the Town Council no motion shall be entertained 

except: (a) to adjourn, (b) to recess, (c) to table, (d) for the previous question, (e) 
to refer, (f) to amend, and (g) to postpone indefinitely.  These motions shall have 
precedence in the order indicated.  Any such motion, except a motion to amend or 
postpone indefinitely, shall be put to a vote without debate. 

 
 
 30. Motions to be Stated by Chair – Withdrawal 
 
  When a motion is made and seconded, it shall be stated by the Chair before 

debate.  Any Town Councilor may demand that it be put in writing by the Clerk.  
A motion may not be withdrawn by the mover without the consent of the Town 
Councilor seconding it. 

 
 31. Motions Out of Order 



 
 

 
ITEM 69 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 70 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Brunswick Public Works Dept 
9 Industry Rd 
BRUNSWICK  ME   04011 
207.725.6654 
FAX 725.6655 

Memorandum
 TO: John Eldridge, Town Manager   

 FROM: John A. Foster, Town Engineer/Dir. PWD

 DATE: 11 June, 2015 

 SUBJECT: Request for Permission to Apply for a Grant Pertaining 
   to Culvert Replacement, River Road Project 

The Maine Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) will be accepting 
grant proposal requests for Stream Crossing Public Infrastructure 
Improvement Projects up until July 15, 2015.  We request permission to 
apply for funding under this DEP grant for our planned project to replace 
the River Road culvert at the foot of Rocky Hill damaged by the flood event 
on August 14, 2014.  We have currently prepared a concept design and 
have applied to the US Army Corps of Engineers for a permit to allow our 
replacement of this culvert.  We are awaiting final review and approval of 
our application. 

The DEP grant, if we are selected based on their evaluation criteria will 
provide us up to $95,000 in funding.  The culvert work we are proposing 
must be done whether or not we are granted any funding so the DEP 
process for this grant application is very timely for us.

C:\Users\jfoster\Dropbox\PDF\PWD\FEMA\Flooding2014August14\RiverRd\Permission2ApplyDEPStreamCulvertGrant.doc 

Brunswick Public Works Dept



 

STATE OF MAINE 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

BUREAU OF LAND and WATER QUALITY 
 
 

RFP# 201504077 
 
 

2015 Grants for Stream Crossing Public Infrastructure 
Improvements 

 
 
 

RFP Coordinator: Leslie Anderson 
State House Station #17 

28 Tyson Drive 
Augusta, ME 04333 

 
Tel: (207) 287-2821   e-mail: Leslie.Anderson@maine.gov 

 
 

From the time this RFP is issued until award notification is made, all contact with the State 
regarding this RFP must be made through the aforementioned RFP Coordinator. No other person / 

State employee is empowered to make binding statements regarding this RFP. Violation of this 
provision may lead to disqualification from the bidding process, at the State’s discretion. 

 
 

 
 

Deadline for Submitted Questions: June 15, 2015, 5:00 p.m. local time 
 
 

Proposals Due: July 15, 2015, not later than 2:00 p.m. local time 
 

Submit to: 
 

Division of Purchases 
Burton M. Cross Building, 111 Sewall Street, 4th Floor 

9 State House Station, Augusta ME 04333-0009 
 
 

mailto:Leslie.Anderson@maine.gov


TABLE OF CONTENTS  
 
Public Notice.......................................................................................................................... ............................ 3 
 
PART I INTRODUCTION.................................................................................................. ............................. 4 
 A. Purpose and Background................................................................................................. ......................... 4 
 B. General Provisions........................................................................................................... ........................ 4 
 C. Eligibility to Submit Proposals........................................................................................ ......................... 5 
 D. Grant Agreement Term..................................................................................................... ....................... 5 
 E. Grant Funds Available and Number of Awards............................................................... ........................ 5 
 
PART II  SCOPE OF SERVICES....................................................................................... ............................ 6 
 
PART III KEY RFP EVENTS............................................................................................. ............................ 7 
 A. Timeline of Key RFP & Grant Award Events................................................................ ......................... 7 
 B. Questions Submitted by Grant Applicants...................................................................... ......................... 7 
 C. Submitting the Proposal.................................................................................................. ......................... 8 
 
PART IV PROPOSAL SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS............................................... ........................... 9 
   
PART V PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND SELECTION............................................. ........................... 10 
 A. Evaluation Process - General Information..................................................................... ........................ 10 
 B. Evaluation Criteria/Scoring Weights...................................................................................................... 10  
 C. Scoring Process.............................................................................................................. ........................ 11 
 D. Selection/Negotiation/Awards........................................................................................ ....................... 12 
 E. Post Award Grant Negotiations....................................................................................... ....................... 12 
 F. Appeal of Grant Awards.................................................................................................. ....................... 12  
 
PART VI GRANT ADMINISTRATION AND CONDITIONS....................................... ........................... 14  
 A. Grant Agreement Document.......................................................................................... ........................ 13 
 B. Standard State Agreement Provisions............................................................................ ........................ 13 
 
PART VII LIST OF RFP APPENDICES AND RELATED DOCUMENTS................... .......................... 16  
 Appendix 1  Proposal Application Form………………………………………….………… ................... 17 
 Appendix 2  Debarment, Performance, and Non-Collusion Certification……….……….… .................... 21 
 

 
 
     
 



************************************************* 
State of Maine 

Department of Environmental Protection 
Bureau of Land and Water Quality 
Public Notice for RFP# 201504077 

2015 Grants for Stream Crossing Infrastructure Improvements 
 

The State of Maine, Department of Environmental Protection, is inviting proposals for public 
infrastructure improvement projects including culvert upgrades and stream crossings.  DEP will 
administer grants for projects to improve and upgrade these vital public infrastructure culvert or stream 
crossings to improve public safety and minimize impacts on water quality and aquatic habitat.  In 
accordance with State grant making practices, the Department is hereby announcing the publication of a 
Request for Proposals - RFP# 201504077. 
 
A copy of the RFP can be obtained at http://www.maine.gov/dep/rfp or by contacting the Department’s 
RFP Coordinator for this project: Leslie Anderson. The RFP Coordinator can be reached at the following 
email address: Leslie.Anderson@maine.gov, or at the following mailing address: State House Station #17, 
28 Tyson Drive, Augusta, ME 04333. The Department encourages all interested eligible applicants to 
obtain a copy of the RFP and submit a competitive proposal. 
 
Proposals must be submitted to the State of Maine Division of Purchases, located at the Burton M. Cross 
Office Building, 111 Sewall Street, 4th Floor, 9 State House Station, Augusta, Maine, 04333-0009. 
Proposals must be submitted by 2:00 pm, local time, on July 15, 2015, when they will be opened at the 
Division of Purchases’ aforementioned address. Proposals not received at the Division of Purchases’ 
aforementioned address by the aforementioned deadline will not be considered for grant award. 
  

************************************************* 

 

http://www.maine.gov/dep/rfp
mailto:mark.bergeron@maine.gov


State of Maine - Department of Environmental Protection 
RFP# 201504077 

2015 Grants for Stream Crossing Infrastructure Improvements 
 

PART I. INTRODUCTION 
 

A.  Purpose and Background 
 
The State of Maine, Department of Environmental Protection (“Department”) is inviting proposals for 
public infrastructure stream crossing improvements and culvert upgrades.  To fund these improvements, 
the Maine Legislature allocated bond money through the passage of Public Law 2013, Chapter 589, An 
Act to Authorize a General Fund Bond Issue to Ensure Clean Water and Safe Communities, which was 
approved by voters in the general election in November 2014. 
 
Pursuant to Public Law 2013, Chapter 589, the Department is charged with disbursing funds for vital 
public infrastructure improvement projects including stream crossings and culvert upgrades. 

 
B.  General Provisions 

 
1. Issuance of this RFP does not commit the Department to issue an award or to pay expenses 

incurred by a Grant applicant in the preparation of a response to this RFP. This includes attendance 
at personal interviews or other meetings and software or system demonstrations, where applicable. 

2. All proposals should adhere to the instructions and format requirements outlined in this RFP and 
all written supplements and amendments (such as the Summary of Questions and Answers), issued 
by the Department. Proposals are to follow the required format and respond to all questions and 
instructions specified below in the “Proposal Submission Requirements and Evaluation” section of 
this RFP. 

3. Grant applicants shall take careful note that in evaluating a proposal submitted in response to this 
RFP, the Department will consider materials provided in the proposal, information obtained 
through interviews/presentations (if any), and internal Departmental information of previous grant 
history with the grant applicant (if any). The Department also reserves the right to consider other 
reliable references and publicly available information available in evaluating a grant applicant’s 
experience and capabilities. The proposal shall be signed by a person authorized to legally bind the 
grant applicant and shall contain a statement that the proposal and the pricing contained therein 
will remain valid and binding for a period of 180 days from the date and time of the grant opening. 

4. The RFP and the selected grant applicant proposal(s), including any and all appendices and/or 
attachments, may be incorporated into the final grant either directly or by reference, at 
Department’s discretion. 

5. Following announcement of an award decision, all submissions in response to this RFP will be 
considered public records available for public inspection pursuant to the State of Maine Freedom 
of Access Act (FOAA) (1 M.R.S. §§ 401 et seq.).  

6. The Department, at its sole discretion, reserves the right to recognize and waive minor 
informalities and irregularities found in proposals received in response to this RFP. 

7. The State of Maine Division of Purchases reserves the right to authorize other Departments to use 
the grant(s) resulting from this RFP, if it is deemed to be beneficial for the State to do so. 

8. All applicable laws, whether or not herein contained, shall be included by this reference. It shall be 
Proposer’s responsibility to determine the applicability and requirements of any such laws and to 
abide by them. 

 
 
 



C.  Eligibility to Submit Proposals 
 
In Maine, eligible recipients for Stream Crossing Public Infrastructure Improvement funds are  
individuals, businesses, municipalities, unorganized and deorganized townships, counties, soil and water 
conservation districts, regional planning commissions, watershed districts, and incorporated nonprofit 
organizations with federal tax exempt status [501(c)(3)]. 
 
State and federal agencies are not eligible recipients. 
 
D.  Grant Agreement Term 
 
The Department is seeking a cost-efficient proposal as defined in this RFP, for the anticipated grant 
period described below.  Please note that the dates are estimated and may be adjusted as necessary in 
order to comply with all procedural requirements associated with this RFP and the grant making 
process. The actual grant start date will be established by a completed and approved grant agreement. 

 
Project Start Date Project Completion Date 

September 1st, 2015 Up to 2 years from start date 

 
E.  Grant Funds Available and Number of Awards 
 
Funds for grants were allocated by the Legislature and approved by voters through a bond measure.  
Grants will be available for stream crossing public infrastructure improvement projects, to be allocated 
over multiple rounds of RFPs, striving to take into account municipalities’ budget cycles and contingent 
on Department staff resources.  The Department anticipates two to three RFP rounds annually for three 
years.  The Department is setting a ceiling on each grant award of $95,000.  The Department reserves 
the right to revise the size of the grants, and offer the grants over more or fewer RFP cycles. 



 

 PART II SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
The Department is inviting proposals for projects to implement public infrastructure improvements at 
stream crossings, including culvert upgrades, in order to improve public safety and minimize impacts on 
water quality and aquatic habitat. 
 
Eligible recipients may apply for grant monies for improvements to public infrastructure.  Project 
proposals must address improvements, modifications, repairs, or upgrades to existing culverts or stream 
crossings.  Eligible recipients must describe how the proposed project meets the following criteria: 
 

• Benefits water quality 
• Improves habitat for wildlife, fish, and other aquatic life (such as through the replacement of 

blocked or poorly sized culverts or stream crossings) 
• Improves public safety by reducing risk of infrastructure failure (such as culvert washouts) 
• Includes provisions for climate resiliency (such as flood protection, prevention, and control at the 

project site and downstream) 
 
More detailed information is included in the Appendix 1 Application Form. 
 
A portion of the grant money may be used to cover design and engineering services related to the 
infrastructure improvements, up to a maximum of 8% of the grant award.  The Department reserves the 
right to provide partial funding of proposed projects.  After award of the grant, the Department will, upon 
coordination with the recipient, designate when the grant money must be expended by, and the payment 
schedule by which the funds will be disbursed. 
 
Grant awards cannot be given on culvert replacements that have already occurred.  Also, monies from this 
grant cannot be used for any permanent land acquisitions, conservation easements, etc. 
 
 
 



 

PART III.  KEY RFP EVENTS 

 
A. Timeline of Key RFP & Grant Award Events (estimated) 

 
Event Name Event Date and Time 

Due Date for Receipt of Written Questions June 15, 2015 at 5:00 pm, local time 
Due Date for Receipt of Proposals July 15, 2015 at 2:00 pm, local time 
Estimated Grant Start Date (subject to change) September 1, 2015 

 
B. Questions Submitted by Grant Applicants 

 
1. General Instructions  

a. It is the responsibility of each Bidder to examine the entire RFP and to seek clarification in 
writing if the Bidder does not understand any information or instructions. 

b. Questions regarding the RFP must be submitted in writing and received by the RFP 
Coordinator listed on the cover page of this RFP document as soon as possible but no later 
than the date and time specified in the timeline above. 

c. Questions may be submitted by e-mail, and include the RFP Number and Title in the subject 
line.  The Department assumes no liability for assuring accurate/complete/on time e-mail 
transmission and receipt. 

d. Include a heading with the RFP Number and Title.  Be sure to refer to the page number and 
paragraph within this RFP relevant to the question presented for clarification, if applicable. 

 
2. Summary of Questions and Answers: Responses to all substantive and relevant questions will be 

compiled in writing and distributed to all registered, interested persons by e-mail no later than 
seven (7) calendar days prior to the proposal due date.  Only those answers issued in writing by the 
RFP Coordinator will be considered binding.  The Department reserves the right to answer or not 
answer any question received. 

 
C. Submitting the Proposal   

 
1. Proposals Due: Proposals must be received no later than 2:00 p.m. local time, on the date listed 

in the timeline above, at which point they will be opened.  Proposals received after the 2:00 p.m. 
deadline will be rejected without exception. 

 
2. Mailing/Delivery Instructions: PLEASE NOTE: The proposals are not to be submitted to the 

RFP Coordinator at the requesting Department.  The official delivery site is the State of Maine 
Division of Purchases (address shown below).   
a. Only proposals received at the official delivery site prior to the stated deadline will be 

considered.  Bidders submitting proposals are responsible for allowing adequate time for 
delivery.  Proposals received after the 2:00 p.m. deadline will be rejected without exception.  
Postmarks do not count and fax or electronic mail transmissions of proposals are not permitted 
unless expressly stated in this RFP.  Any method of hardcopy delivery is acceptable, such as 
US Mail, in-person delivery by Bidder, or use of private courier services. 

  b.  The Bidder must send its proposal in a sealed package including one original and 6 copies of 
the complete proposal.  Please clearly label the original.  One electronic copy of the proposal 
must also be provided on CD or flash drive with the complete narrative and attachments in MS 
Word format.  Any attachments that cannot be submitted in MS Word format may be 
submitted as Adobe (.pdf) files. 



  c. Address each package as follows (and be sure to include the Bidder’s full business name and 
address as well as the RFP number and title): 

 

 (Grant Applicant Name/Return Address) 
 
        Division of Purchases 
        Burton M. Cross Building, 4th Floor   
        111 Sewall Street 
        9 State House Station 
        Augusta ME 04333-0009 
          
        Re: RFP# 201504077 

 



  
PART IV  PROPOSAL SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS 

  
This section contains instructions for grant applicants to use in preparing their proposals. The grant 
applicant’s proposal must follow the outline used below, including the numbering and section/sub-section 
headings as they appear here. Failure to use the outline specified in this section, or to respond to all 
questions and instructions throughout this document, may result in the proposal being disqualified 
as non-responsive or receiving a reduced score. The Department has sole discretion to determine 
whether a variance from the RFP specifications should result in either disqualification or reduction in 
scoring of a proposal. Rephrasing of the content provided in this RFP will, at best, be considered 
minimally responsive. The Department seeks detailed yet succinct responses that demonstrate the grant 
applicant’s experience and ability to perform the requirements specified throughout this document. 
 
General Provisions 
 
The grant applicant may not provide additional material beyond those specified in the RFP for the purpose 
of extending their response.  Any material exceeding the proposal limit will not be considered in rating the 
proposals and will not be returned.  Grant applicants shall not include brochures or other promotional 
material with their proposals.  Additional materials will not be considered part of the proposal and will not 
be evaluated.  It is the responsibility of the grant applicant to provide all information requested in the RFP 
package at the time of submission.  Failure to provide information requested in this RFP may, at the 
discretion of the Department, result in a lower rating for the incomplete sections and may result in the 
proposal being disqualified for consideration. 
 

 INSTRUCTIONS FOR PREPARING PROPOSALS 
 
A complete proposal consists of three (3) parts, as follows: 
 
PART 1 COVER LETTER  
A completed cover letter (on applicant letterhead) signed by an official authorized to submit a proposal on 
behalf of the applicant.  

 
Part 1 - Maximum 2 pages 
 
PART 2 APPLICATION 
A completed grant application (See Appendix 1) 

 
Part 2 - Maximum 10 pages 
 
PART 3 PHOTOS AND LOCATION MAP  
Provide photos of the existing crossing/culvert and a map of the project location clearly showing the water 
body(s), town(s), and location of each stream crossing.  Do not include oversized drawings.  Pages must 
be 8.5” by 11” paper size.  
 
Part 3 - Maximum 5 pages 



 

PART V.   PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND SELECTION 
 
Evaluation of the submitted proposals shall be accomplished as follows: 
 

A.  Evaluation Process - General Information 
 

1. An evaluation team, comprised of qualified reviewers within the Department, will judge the merits 
of the proposals received in accordance with the criteria defined in the RFP. 

2. Officials responsible for making decisions for grant awards shall ensure that the selection process 
affords equal opportunity and appropriate consideration to all who are capable of meeting the 
specifications. The goals of the evaluation process are to ensure fairness and objectivity in review 
of proposals and to ensure that grants best satisfying the criteria of the RFP are selected. 

3. The Department reserves the right to communicate and/or schedule interviews/presentations with 
grant applicants if needed to obtain clarification of information contained in the proposals 
received, and the Department may revise the scores assigned in the initial evaluation to reflect 
those communications and/or interviews/presentations.  Interviews/presentations are not required, 
and changes to proposals will not be permitted during any interview/presentation process. 
Therefore, grant applicants should submit proposals that present costs and other requested 
information as clearly and completely as possible.  

 
B.  Evaluation Criteria / Scoring Weights 
 
Proposal scoring will be based on a 100 point scale and will measure the degree to which each proposal 
meets the evaluation criteria shown below.  

 
1.  Scoring Criteria for Existing Culvert/Crossing Information (Maximum of 25 points) 

Relevant section: Part IV of the application (Appendix 1). 
Describe if, and when, the culvert/crossing has washed out, failed, flooded or overtopped the road 
in the last 20 years.  Describe what sort of impacts would occur if the structure were to fail and 
what critical public facilities would be impacted.  Describe if the existing structure impairs or 
prevents wildlife, fish and aquatic life from passing through the structure and whether the structure 
is identified as a barrier or potential barrier by the Maine Stream Connectivity Work Group in their 
online Stream Habitat Viewer: http://mapserver.maine.gov/streamviewer/streamdocHome.html.  If 
the project is located in a town that has not been mapped, discuss the barriers or potential barriers 
that exist. 

 
2.  Scoring Criteria for Proposed Culvert/Crossing Cost & Budget Information (Maximum of 25 

Points)  
Relevant section: Part V of the application (Appendix 1). 
Describe the proposed culvert materials and physical dimensions.  Provide a brief description of 
the proposed project, including the requested amount of funds from this grant.  Provide 
information on the estimated costs and schedule for the proposed culvert replacement. 

 
3.  Scoring Criteria of the Proposed Culvert/Crossing (Maximum of 50 Points) 

Relevant section: Part VI of the application (Appendix 1).  
Describe the benefits to public infrastructure and safety from the project through reduction in risk 
of infrastructure failure, such as a culvert washout due to extreme storm events.  Describe how the 
project will reduce future costs in infrastructure repair and upgrades at the site as well as 
downstream. 
 

http://mapserver.maine.gov/streamviewer/streamdocHome.html


Describe if design plans and construction specifications are complete and if all necessary local, 
state and federal permits have been obtained.  If no design plans or permits are complete, provide 
an estimate of the design and engineering costs for the proposed culvert.   
 
Discuss how the new design and construction process will meet erosion control best management 
practices. 
 
Describe provisions for climate resiliency in the design of the new structure.  Considerations may 
include: past washouts due to storm events; damage to the existing stream crossing; and ability of 
existing crossing to handle 100-year or greater storm events. 
 
Describe habitat benefits such as wildlife and fish passage and other aquatic life improvements. 
 
Describe the water quality benefits that will be provided as a result of the project.  Water quality 
benefits may include improved downstream impacts to watersheds as well as drinking water 
sources, streams, lakes, etc. 

 
C.  Scoring Process 
 
The review team will use a consensus approach to evaluate the bids. Members of the review team will 
not score the proposals individually but instead will arrive at a consensus as to assignment of points on 
each category of each proposal.  The contract award(s) will be made to the Bidder(s) receiving the 
highest number of evaluation points, based upon the proposals’ satisfaction of the criteria established in 
the RFP. 
 
Regarding the grant funds requested and the proposed work, the review team will consider the degree to 
which the project represents a good return for the investment (money, time) as well as whether the 
project work and cost estimates (tasks & budget) are reasonable for the expected outcomes, along with 
the amount and quality of proposed matching funds or services.   
 
No Best and Final Offers: The State of Maine will not seek a best and final offer (BAFO) from any 
Bidder in this procurement process.  All Bidders are expected to provide their best value pricing with 
the submission of their proposal. 

 
D.  Selection/Negotiations/Awards 
 

1. Final decisions regarding award of the grants will be made by the Department, subject to approval 
by the State Purchases Review Committee. 

2. Written notification of proposal selection or non-selection will be made to respondents of this RFP 
by the Department.  

3. Issuance of this RFP in no way constitutes a commitment by the State of Maine to award a grant, 
to pay costs incurred in the preparation of a response to this request, or to pay costs incurred in 
acquiring grant services or procuring or contracting for services, supplies, physical space, 
personnel or any other costs incurred by the grant applicant.  

4. The Department reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to make multiple awards, and 
make subsequent awards based on funding availability.  
 

E.  Post Award Grant Negotiations 
 
The Department reserves the right to negotiate with the successful applicants to finalize grants at the 
same project cost as presented in the selected proposal or at a different project cost, given the amount of 



total funds available and the number of proposals the evaluation team decides to fund. Such negotiations 
may not significantly vary the content, nature or requirements of the proposal or the Department’s 
Request for Proposals to an extent that may affect the integrity of the project proposed. The Department 
or applicant may reserve the right to terminate negotiations if the Department and applicant cannot come 
to agreement or if the applicant’s revised project proposal does not comply with the RFP or is not 
acceptable to the Department. In the event that an acceptable project and grant cannot be negotiated with 
any selected grantee, the Department may withdraw its award and negotiate with the next-highest ranked 
applicant, and so on, until an acceptable contract amount has been finalized and available grant funds 
have been allocated. Alternatively, the Department may cancel the RFP or choose not to award all grant 
funds available, at its sole discretion. 

 
F.  Appeal of Grant Awards 
 
Any person aggrieved by the award decision that result from this RFP may appeal the decision to the 
Director of the Bureau of General Services in the manner prescribed in 5 MRSA § 1825-E and 18-554 
Code of Maine Rules, Chapter 120 (found here: http://www.maine.gov/purchases/policies/120.shtml). 
The appeal must be in writing and filed with the Director of the Bureau of General Services, 9 State 
House Station, Augusta, Maine, 04333-0009 within 15 calendar days of receipt of notification of grant 
award results. 

http://www.maine.gov/purchases/policies/120.shtml


 
PART VI. GRANT ADMINISTRATION AND CONDITIONS 

 
A.  Grant Agreement Document 

 
1. The successful Grant applicant will be required to execute a grant in the form of a State of Maine 

Agreement to Purchase Services (BP54). A list of applicable Riders is as follows: 
 

  Rider A: Specification of Work to be Performed 
  Rider B: Method of Payment and Other Provisions 

  Rider C: Exceptions to Rider B  
  Rider D: (optional; for use by Department)  
  Rider E: (optional; for use by Department) 
  Rider G: Identification of Country in Which Contracted Work Will Be Performed 
 

The complete set of standard BP54 agreement documents may be found on the Division of 
Purchases website at the following link: http://www.maine.gov/purchases/info/forms/BP54.doc. 
 
Other forms and agreement documents commonly used by the State can be found on the Division 
of Purchases website at the following link: http://www.maine.gov/purchases/info/forms.shtml . 

   
2.  Allocation of funds is final upon successful negotiation and execution of the grant, subject to the 

review and approval of the State Purchases Review Committee. Grants are not considered fully 
executed and valid until approved by the State Purchases Review Committee and funds are 
encumbered. No grant will be approved based on an RFP which has an effective date less than 
fourteen (14) calendar days after award notification to grant applicants. (Referenced in the 
regulations of the Department of Administrative and Financial Services, Chapter 110, § 3(B)(i):  

 http://www.maine.gov/purchases/policies/110.shtml .  
 
This provision means that a grant cannot be effective until at least 14 days after award notification. 

 
3.  The Department estimates having grants in place by September 1, 2015. The State recognizes, 

however, that the actual effective date(s) of grant awards depends upon completion of the RFP 
process, date of formal award notifications, length of grant negotiations, and preparation and 
approval by the State Purchases Review Committee.  Any appeals to the Department’s award 
decision(s) may further postpone the actual grant effective date, depending upon the outcome. The 
grant effective date may need to be adjusted, if necessary, to comply with mandated requirements. 

 
4. In performing under the grant, successful Grant applicants shall act independently and not as an 

agent of the State of Maine.  
 

B. Standard State Agreement Provisions 
 

1.  Agreement Administration 
a.) Following the award, an Agreement Administrator from the Department will be appointed to 

assist with the development and administration of the grant and to act as administrator during 
the entire grant period.  Department staff will be available after the award to consult with the 
successful grant applicant in the finalization of the grant.  

b.) In the event that an acceptable grant cannot be negotiated with the highest-ranked grant 
applicant, the Department may withdraw its award to that applicant and negotiate with the 
next-highest ranked grant applicant, and so on, until an acceptable grant is finalized and 

http://www.maine.gov/purchases/info/forms/BP54.doc
http://www.maine.gov/purchases/info/forms.shtml
http://www.maine.gov/purchases/policies/110.shtml


available grant funds are satisfactorily awarded or obligated.  Alternatively, the Department 
may cancel the RFP, at its sole discretion. 

 
2.  Payments and Other Provisions 

The State anticipates paying the Grantee on the basis of net 30 payment terms, upon the receipt of 
an accurate and acceptable invoice.  An invoice will be considered accurate and acceptable if it 
contains a reference to the State of Maine grant number, contains correct pricing information 
relative to the grant, and provides any required supporting documents, proof of payments to others 
as applicable, and any other specific and agreed-upon requirements listed within the grants that 
result from this RFP.  All unobligated funds from the original grant award determination will go 
back to the “pool of funds” for redistribution to other grantees upon project completion.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

PART VII LIST OF RFP APPENDICES AND RELATED DOCUMENTS 
 
 

Appendix 1 Grant Application Form 
 
Appendix 2 Debarment, Performance, and Non-Collusion Certification 



 
APPENDIX 1  
  

Maine Department of Environmental Protection 
Request for Proposals for Stream Crossing Public Infrastructure Improvement Projects 

Proposal Application Form 2015 
RFP# 201504077 

I. Applicant Information 
Applicant Name 
 
Applicant Mailing Address 
 

State Zip 

Applicant Phone # 
 

Applicant Email Address 

II. Agent/Consultant Information, if applicable 
Agent Name 
 
Agent Mailing Address 
 

State Zip 

Agent Phone # 
 

Agent Email Address 

III. Existing Culvert/Stream Crossing Information (please attach a map(s) of the project location 
and a photo of the existing culvert/crossing to this application): 

Municipality or Unorganized territory where 
project will take place: 
 
 

County: 
 

Description of culvert/crossing location.  Include distances from nearest road intersections, 
latitude/longitude GPS coordinates, UTM Northing and Easting (if known), etc. 
 
 
Existing culvert material: Circle One (Plastic pipe, concrete pipe, corrugated metal pipe, concrete box 
culvert, stone/granite culvert, bridge, or Other type (describe). 
 
 
Length: 
 

Diameter: 
 

Width: Height: Approximate Age 
of Culvert: 
 

Provide other information about the existing crossing that you believe is important: 
 
 
IV. Scoring Criteria for Existing Culvert/Stream Crossing Information (25 Points total): 

Has the culvert/crossing washed out, flooded, overtopped the road, or failed in the past 20 years due to 
storm events?  If yes, please describe how often, and the approximate dates of culvert/crossing failure. 
 
 
What sort of impacts would occur if the culvert/crossing were to fail?  For instance, are there critical 
public services (fire or police station, hospital, school, public works facility) located on this road that 
would be cutoff?  If there are no critical public services on this road, what other types of facilities or 
neighborhoods would be impacted if the culvert failed? 
 
 



Is the existing crossing/culvert a ‘hanging culvert’, meaning that it impairs or prevents fish and aquatic 
life from passing upstream through the culvert due to its height above the stream?  If yes, please 
describe the type of barrier or potential barrier that the culvert/crossing causes. 
 
 
Is the existing culvert/crossing identified as a barrier or potential barrier on the Maine Stream Habitat 
Viewer database?  If the project is located in a town that has not been mapped, discuss the barriers or 
potential barriers that exist. 

 
 
V. Scoring Criteria for Proposed Culvert/Crossing Cost & Budget Information (25 Points total): 
Proposed culvert/crossing material: Circle One (Plastic pipe, concrete pipe, corrugated metal pipe, 
concrete box culvert, stone/granite culvert, pipe arch, bridge, or Other type (describe): 
 
 
Length: 
 

Diameter: 
 

Width: Height: 

Please provide a brief overview/description of the proposed project, including the requested amount of 
funds from this grant (award grants are capped at $95,000). 
 
 
What are the estimated construction costs for the culvert/crossing replacement?  Include estimated 
items for mobilization of equipment, erosion control and stream diversion, existing culvert removal, 
installation of the new culvert, permanent stabilization, and engineering design costs 
 
 
What is the estimated construction schedule for the proposed project?  Include estimated start and 
completion dates, and include any time of year restrictions from state or federal permitting agencies. 
 
 
VI. Scoring Criteria for Proposed Culvert/Crossing Information ( 50 Points total): 

(See Section V.B. on pages 10-11 for more detail.) 
Please describe how the new culvert/crossing has been/will be designed to improve public 
infrastructure and safety. 
 
 
Please describe what provisions for addressing climate resiliency were used/will be used in designing 
the replacement culvert/crossing. 
 
 
If the existing culvert/crossing was to be replaced, how much habitat (i.e., miles of stream, or acres of 
wetland habitat) would be opened up to fish passage and other aquatic life? 
 
 
Please describe the water quality benefits that will be provided as a result of the replacement 
culvert/crossing. 
 
 
Do you have engineered design plans and construction specifications for the replacement 
culvert/crossing?  If yes, describe who designed the plans, and when the plans were completed. 
 
 



Discuss how the culvert/crossing design and construction process complies with erosion control best 
management practices. 
 
 
Do you have all necessary local, state and federal permits and approvals in place to construct the 
proposed replacement culvert/crossing?  If so, please list the types of approvals, the approving agency, 
the permit number or identifier, and the approval date of the permit(s). 
 
 
If no design plans and permit approvals are in place, what are your anticipated engineering and 
permitting costs to complete this work?  Who will provide the design engineering and permitting 
services?  (Note that design and permitting costs will be limited to 8% of the total grant award.) 
 
 
Please provide other information about the proposed project that you believe is important: 
 
 
 



 
APPENDIX 2 
 
 

Debarment, Performance, and Non-Collusion Certification 
 
By signing this document I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the aforementioned 
organization, its principals, and any subcontractors named in this proposal: 

a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, and declared ineligible or 
voluntarily excluded from bidding or working on contracts issued by any governmental 
agency. 

b. Have not within three years of submitting the proposal for this contract been convicted of or 
had a civil judgment rendered against them for: 

i. fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or 
performing a federal, state or local government transaction or contract. 

ii. violating Federal or State antitrust statutes or committing embezzlement, theft, forgery, 
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving 
stolen property; 

iii. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 
governmental entity (Federal, State or Local) with commission of any of the offenses 
enumerated in paragraph (b) of this certification; and 

iv. have not within a three (3) year period preceding this proposal had one or more 
federal, state or local government transactions terminated for cause or default. 

c. Have not entered into a prior understanding, agreement, or connection with any corporation, 
firm, or person submitting a response for the same materials, supplies, equipment, or services 
and this proposal is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud. The above mentioned 
entities understand and agree that collusive bidding is a violation of state and federal law and 
can result in fines, prison sentences, and civil damage awards. 

• Failure to provide this certification may result in the disqualification of the Bidder’s 
proposal, at the discretion of the Department. 

 
To the best of my knowledge all information provided in the enclosed proposal, both programmatic and 
financial, is complete and accurate at the time of submission. 
 
Name:  Title: 

 
Authorized Signature:  Date: 

 


	64 yes
	64 Special Amusescan0015
	65 yes
	65 Solarize_Brunswick_TC_update_15_June_2015
	66 yes
	66 Memo to TC on MEA Contract Amendment (6-10-2015)
	67 yes
	68 yes
	68 Council Rule Amendment (proposed) (2)
	69 no
	70 yes
	ca a yes
	ca a June 1, 2015 min
	ca b yes
	ca b May 28 2015 budget min
	ca c yes
	ca c bda can0014
	mr a on line only
	mr b yes
	mr c yes
	MR C Memo to TC on CGI Communications Video Project (DRAFT 6-8-2015)
	mr d no
	70 Permission2ApplyDEPStreamCulvertGrant.pdf
	MDEP_culvert_rfp.pdf
	A.  Purpose and Background
	B.  General Provisions
	C.  Eligibility to Submit Proposals
	D.  Grant Agreement Term
	E.  Grant Funds Available and Number of Awards
	A. Timeline of Key RFP & Grant Award Events (estimated)
	B. Questions Submitted by Grant Applicants
	C. Submitting the Proposal
	A.  Evaluation Process - General Information
	B.  Evaluation Criteria / Scoring Weights
	E.  Post Award Grant Negotiations
	F.  Appeal of Grant Awards
	A.  Grant Agreement Document
	The complete set of standard BP54 agreement documents may be found on the Division of Purchases website at the following link: http://www.maine.gov/purchases/info/forms/BP54.doc.
	Other forms and agreement documents commonly used by the State can be found on the Division of Purchases website at the following link: http://www.maine.gov/purchases/info/forms.shtml .

	B. Standard State Agreement Provisions





